Public Document Pack

Licensing Sub- EASTBOURNE nk -~

Com m ittee Borough Council
23 January 2020

Working in partnership with Eastbourne Homes

Time and venue:

6.00 pm in the Court Room at Eastbourne Town Hall, Grove Road, BN21 4UG
Membership:

Councillor Pat Rodohan (Chair); Councillors Jim Murray and Barry Taylor
Quorum: 3

Published: Wednesday, 15 January 2020

Agenda

1 Appointment of Chair
2 Minutes of the meeting held on 17 December 2019 (Pages 3 - 6)
3 Apologies for absence / declaration of substitute members

4 Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) by members as
required under Section 31 of the Localism Act and other interests as
required by the Code of Conduct

5 Application for the renewal of a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence:
Lux, 2a-2b Pevensey Road, Eastbourne, BN21 3HJ (Pages 7 - 94)

Information for the public

Accessibility: Please note that the venue for this meeting is wheelchair accessible and
has an induction loop to help people who are hearing impaired. This agenda and
accompanying reports are published on the Council’'s website in PDF format which means
you can use the “read out loud” facility of Adobe Acrobat Reader.

Filming/Recording: This meeting may be filmed, recorded or broadcast by any
person or organisation. Anyone wishing to film or record must notify the Chair prior to
the start of the meeting. Members of the public attending the meeting are deemed to
have consented to be filmed or recorded, as liability for this is not within the Council’s
control.

Public participation: Please contact Democratic Services (see end of agenda) for the
relevant deadlines for registering to speak on a matter which is listed on the agenda if
applicable.



Information for councillors

Disclosure of interests: Members should declare their interest in a matter at the
beginning of the meeting.

In the case of a disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI), if the interest is not registered
(nor the subject of a pending notification) details of the nature of the interest must be
reported to the meeting by the member and subsequently notified in writing to the
Monitoring Officer within 28 days.

If a member has a DPI or other prejudicial interest he/she must leave the room when
the matter is being considered (unless he/she has obtained a dispensation).

Councillor right of address: Councillors wishing to address the meeting who are not
members of the committee must notify the Chairman and Democratic Services in
advance (and no later than immediately prior to the start of the meeting).

Democratic Services

For any further queries regarding this agenda or notification of apologies please
contact Democratic Services.

Email: committees@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk

Telephone: 01323 410000

Website: http://www.lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk/

modern.gov app available
r View upcoming public committee documents on your iPad or Android Device with the free
modern.gov app.



mailto:committees@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
http://www.lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk/
https://itunes.apple.com/gb/app/mod.gov/id508417355?mt=8
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 2
EASTBOURNE

Borough Council

llm

Working in partnership with Eastbourne Homes

Licensing Sub-Committee

Minutes of meeting held in Court Room at Eastbourne Town Hall, Grove Road,
BN21 4UG on 17 December 2019 at 6.00 pm

Present:

Councillor Candy Vaughan (Chair)
Councillors Amanda Morris and Colin Murdoch

Officers in attendance:

Danielle Ball (Specialist Advisor - Licensing, Service Delivery), Michele Wilkinson
(Lawyer (Housing & Regulatory)), and Emily Horne, Committee Officer

10

Appointment of Chair

Councillor Morris proposed and Councillor Murdoch seconded that Councillor
Vaughan be appointed as Chair for this meeting.

RESOLVED: That Councillor Candy Vaughan was appointed Chair for the
meeting.

Minutes of the meeting held on 26 September 2019

The minutes of the meeting of the Sub Licensing Committee held on 26
September 2019 were approved and the Chair authorised to sign them as a
correct record.

Apologies for absence / declaration of substitute members

There were none.

Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) by members as
required under Section 31 of the Localism Act and of other interests as
required by the Code of Conduct

There were none.

Application for a variation to the current Premises Licence: Three
Monkeys Bar and Kitchen, 16 Langney Road, Eastbourne, BN21 3QA

All parties present introduced themselves and the Chair detailed the

procedure to be followed at the hearing. There were no objections to the
procedure from those present.

Page 3



17 December 2019 2 Licensing Sub-
Committee

The Specialist Advisor for Licensing outlined the report setting out the
application for a variation to the current premises licence for Three Monkeys
Bar and Kitchen, 16 Langney Road.

Details of the application for a variation to the current premises licence were
appended to the report. When submitting an application for the variation of a
premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003, the applicant is required to
describe any steps they intended to take to promote the four licensing
objectives, as defined by the Licensing Act 2003. These were appended to
the report at Appendix 1.

The premises in question is located within the cumulative impact zone
(ClZ) and where valid representations were received, the cumulative impact
policy (CIP) created a rebuttable presumption that the application be
refused.

Following a consultation period of 28 days, two representations had been
received from “responsible authorities” and were included in part of the
agenda pack circulated. The representations centred on the prevention of
crime and disorder, the prevention of public nuisance and public safety.

Mr Dene Sonnessa, applicant, acknowledged that he had not correctly
referred to the four licensing objectives or the CIZ within the application form.
Following communication with Sussex Police Licensing, he said he had
agreed to all the conditions they had recommended to be placed on the
licence.

Councillors asked Mr Sonnessa, why he had applied for the same operating
hours as Cameo Nightclub. He said he wanted the same opportunity as other
businesses, to work together rather than work off the back of each other.

Councillors sought clarification regarding the type of films and dance that the
applicant had proposed to provide. Mr Sonnessa explained that films and
music videos would be played in the background for adults and children using
an overhead projector. Live dancers would perform alongside live bands and
a karaoke machine would be available for use on a regular basis. In response
to questions raised regarding the capacity of the premises, Mr Sonnessa
confirmed the venue could hold a maximum of 60 people, but more likely 40
people, and seat 35 people. He also said that customers under the age of 18
would be advised upon entering the building that they must vacate the
building after eating.

Sussex Police stated that the applicant was seeking to change the use of the
premises to a late night vertical establishment by extending the hours of
operation to 03:00hrs. They referred to crime and disorder data, stating that
another late night premises in the area would negatively add to problems in
the ClZ. Having met with the applicant on 3 November 2019 to determine
type of premises, the applicant had said he wanted freedom to try different
things, but he did not understand CIZ or the statement of Licensing Policy.
Furthermore, he had not offered any additional conditions or information on

Page 4



17 December 2019 3 Licensing Sub-
Committee

how the premises would promote the licensing objectives. Sussex Police
urged the Sub-Committee to refuse the application, but if minded to approve
it, they requested all of the conditions referred to in their representation in
Appendix 3 of the agenda, be added to the exact wording, and proposed the
premises close at midnight.

Councillors questioned whether there was a link between late night opening
hours of drinking establishments and incidents fuelled by alcohol. Sussex
Police said that analysis had showed a strong link between the two, and that
most violent crime was fuelled by alcohol. An additional premises would add
to problems in the area.

Councillors questioned the dispersal of other premises in the area. Sussex
Police confirmed that there were other late night food establishment premises
which have a dispersal policy eg Embassy, Seaside. But they had not
received clarification from the applicant on how they would manage their
dispersal policy.

Mr Albon, Specialist Advisor - Public Health, addressed the Sub-Committee in
regard to the lack of information supplied by the applicant to promote the
Licensing Obijectives of the prevention of public nuisance. He said the
premises would cause noise nuisance to residential properties in the area,
especially taking on board the requested hours of opening. He referred to the
conditions listed in his representation, Appendix 5 of the agenda, which he
requested be added to the licence if granted.

Councillors questioned whether the premises was sound proofed. Mr Albon
said he had not been inside the premises, but it did have a glazed shopfront.

In summary, Sussex Police said this was an application for a new late night
venue in the heart of the CIZ. The premises would not effectively promote the
licensing objectives and there was not enough detail in the application to
override the presumption of rebuttal for this application within the CIZ.

To conclude, Mr Sonnessa, said he and his business partner wanted an
opportunity to give the business a go.

Following all the evidence presented, the Sub-Committee retired to consider
and determine the application.

Having taking into account all the relevant considerations, the Sub-
Committee reconvened and announced the decision as follows:

RESOLVED: That the application for a variation to the current premises
licence be refused.

The meeting ended at 7.28 pm

Councillor Candy Vaughan (Chair)

Page 5



17 December 2019 4 Licensing Sub-
Committee

Page 6



Report to:
Date:

Title:

Report of:
Ward(s):

Purpose of report:

Officer

recommendation(s):

Reasons for
recommendations:

Agenda Iltem 5

Licensing Sub Committee
231 January 2020

Application for the renewal of a Sexual Entertainment Venue
Licence, Lux, 2a-2b Pevensey Road, Eastbourne, BN21 3HJ

Director of Service Delivery
Devonshire Ward

To determine a renewal application of a Sexual
Entertainment Venue Licence.

That the Licensing Sub Committee considers the renewal
application and relevant representation.

The Council is responsible for considering representations
against the application to renew a Sexual Entertainment
Venue Licences.

Contact Officer(s): Name: Danielle Ball
Post title: Specialist Advisor
E-mail: danielle.ball@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
Telephone number: 01323 415333

1 Introduction & Background

1.1 The Scheme for the control of sex establishments by the way of a licensing

regime is contained in the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act
1982, as amended by the Policing and Crime Act 2009. The Council as the
Appropriate Authority is encouraged to have regard to the Home Office Sexual
Entertainment Venues Guidance for England and Wales (March 2010) (“the
Guidance”), included as Appendix 1.

1.2 In addition Eastbourne Borough Council adopted its Sexual Establishment and
Encounter Policy (“the Policy”) on the 23 February 2011 and its current version
on the 91" December 2015, to which Members should have regard. This is
included at Appendix 2.

1.3 There is currently this one sexual entertainment venue in the Borough of
Eastbourne. The licence was initially granted in July 2018, due to the delay in

issuing the licence it ran from 6t December 2018 to the 5" December 2019. As
the application to renew the licence was made before the expiry of the one year
licence it is deemed to remain in force notwithstanding that the date has passed,
until the withdrawal of the application or its determination. It is currently not
operating as a sexual entertainment venue. The premises applied to vary the
SEV licence and this was approved by the Licensing Sub-committee on the 26t
September 2019.

Page 7



1.4

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

This premises has a valid premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003 that
covers

Recorded music Monday to Saturday 18:00- 04:00

Sunday 18:00- 03:00

Performance of Dance Monday to Saturday 18:00-04:00
Sunday 18:00- 03:00

Supply of Alcohol Monday to Saturday 18:00- 03:30
Sunday 18:00- 02:30

The Application

An application has been received by Eastbourne Borough Council the
‘Appropriate Authority’, to renew the Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence. A
valid application was received on the 61" November 2019. It was from F. Forte
Developments Ltd, in relation to LUX, for the performance of exotic dancers by
male and female dancers (not mixed). The premises to trade seven days a week
between 22:00hrs to 04:00hrs. A copy of the application is included at
Appendix 3.

Sexual Entertainment Venue is defined as any premises at which relevant
entertainment is provided before a live audience for the financial gain of the
organiser or the entertainer.

Relevant Entertainment means
Any live performance or
Any live display of nudity

Which is of such a nature that, ignoring financial gain, it must be reasonable to
be assumed to be provided solely or principally for the purpose of sexually
stimulating any member of the audience (whether by verbal or other means.)

A copy of the current licence is included at Appendix 4.

Consultation process

The Act requires applicants to advertise both on the premises, and in a local
newspaper in order to inform the public of the application. The site notice is

required to be on display for 21 days and any one making objections has 28
days to do so. These requirements have been complied with.

A copy of the application was served on the Chief Officer of the Police. Sussex
Police have not made a representation concerning this renewal application.

As a result of the consultation process, 1 representation has been made against
this application. In line with 6.3 of the Policy any representations that are
received against a renewal are referred to be heard by the Licensing Sub-
Committee. A copy of the representation is included at Appendix 5.

Page 8



4.1

5.1

6.1

7.1

8.1

9.1

Considerations

The Policy and the Guidance attached to this Report outlines the matters that
the Authority should consider when determining the renewal application and
these are listed in sections 5 and 6 of the Policy, of particular relevance are
sections 5.7 to 5.10 and also 6.2. However, each application will be considered
on its own merits.

Options available to Members
Members may:

e Grant the application as requested

e Grant the application to renew with additional or varied terms, conditions
or restrictions

e Refuse the application

Appeal

Any applicant who is refused the renewal of the licence or a holder of any such
licence who is aggrieved by any term, condition or restriction on the licence may
within 21 days of being notified of the decision appeal to the Magistrates’ Court.
However, this is a restricted right of appeal. Appeals only lie against a
mandatory refusal on the basis that the mandatory ground does not apply.
Further, the right of appeal does not apply if the licence renewal is refused on
the grounds that the number of sexual entertainment venues in the locality
equals or exceeds the number the authority considers appropriate, or if the
renewal of the licence would be inappropriate having regard to the character of
the locality, the use to which any other premises in the locality are put, or the
layout, character or condition of the premises themselves.

There is no statutory right of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court for any objectors.
Where an application for renewal is refused the licence shall be deemed to
remain in force until the time for bringing the appeal has expired and if such an
appeal is brought until the determination or abandonment of the appeal. Where
the appeal relates to the imposition of a term, condition or restriction the licence
shall be free of it until the determination or abandonment of the appeal.

Financial appraisal

The cost of delivering the licensing function is fully covered by the Licensing
fees.

Legal implications

The Legal Section considered this Report on 13 January 2020 (IKEN 8883-EBC-
MW).

Risk management implications

There are no risks associated with the content of this report.

Page 9



10

10.1

11

11.1

12

13

Equalities & Fairness Screening

An Equality & Fairness Analysis has been produced and is included at
Appendix 6.

The Committee are reminded of the Public Sector Equality Duty, and in
particular the three equality aims, being to:

1. Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation

2. Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a characteristic
and those who do not share it;

3. Foster good relations between people who share a characteristic and those
who do not share it.

Sustainability and/or carbon reduction implications

There are no sustainability and/or carbon reduction implications associated with
this report.

Appendices

e Appendix 1 — Home Office Sexual Entertainment Venues Guidance for
England and Wales (March 2010)

e Appendix 2- Sex Establishment and Encounter Policy 2015

e Appendix 3- Renewal application for the Sexual Entertainment Venue
licence

e Appendix 4- Current licence

e Appendix 5- Representation

e Appendix 6- Equality and Fairness Analysis

Background Papers

None

Page 10



Home Office

Sexual Entertainment Venues

Guidance for England and Wales

Page 11



Contents
Ministerial Foreword

1. Introduction

Definitions

Policing and Crime Act 2009
The Guidance

2. Policing and Crime Act 2009

Meaning of Sexual Entertainment Venue

Nudity '

The Organiser

Spontaneous Entertainment

Premises that are not Sexual Entertainment Venues
Amendments to the Licensing Act 2003
Consultation with Local People

3. Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions Act) 1982
The Appropriate Authaority

Committee or Sub-Committee

Adopting the Provisions

Requirement for a Sex Establishment Licence

Premises that are Deemed to be Sexual Entertainment Venues
Notices

Application Forms

Single Point of Contact

Fees

Obijections

Hearings

Refusal of a Licence

Relevant Locality

Licence Conditions

Duration of Licences

Page 12

(4 6 B |

13

13
14
15
15
16
16
17
17
18
18
19
20
22
23



Appeals

Licensing Policies

Offences

Provisions Relating to Existing Premises

The Services Directive

4. Transitional Arrangements
Transitional Period
Existing Operators
New Applicants
Determining Application Received Before the 2nd Appointed Day
Determining Application Received After the 2nd Appointed Day
Outstanding Application
Existing Licence Conditions
ECHR Considerations
Changes to licensing policies
London
Sex Encounter Establishments
Hostess Bars
Soliciting for Custom

Annex A: Guide to Transitional Period and Existing Operators

Annex B: Guide to Transitional Period and New Applicants

Page 13

23
23
24
25
25

27
27
27
28
28
29
29-
30
31
32
32
32
33
33

36



MINISTERIAL FOREWORD

In September 2008, the previous Home Secretary
announced the Government’s intention to give local people
greater say over the number and location of lap dancing
clubs in their area. This followed a consultation with local
authorities which highlighted concerns that existing
legislation did not give communities sufficient powers to control where lap

dancing clubs were established.

In order to address these concerns, section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act
2009 reclassifies lap dancing clubs as sexual entertainment venues and gives
local authorities in England and Wales the power to regulate such venues as
sex establishments under Schedule 3 to the Local Government

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982.

These new measures, which take effect on 6th April 2010 in England and on
8th May in Wales, will, if adopted by local authorities, give local people a
greater say over where and how many lap dancing clubs open and operate in

their neighbourhoods.

These are important reforms to further empower local communities and the
purpose of this guidance is to provide advice to local authorities, operators,
local people and other interested parties on the new measures introduced by
section 27 and the associated secondary legislation.

Alan Campbell

(Uan (oo pbell

Parliamentary Under-Secretary of State for Crime Reduction

March 2010

Page 14



INTRODUCTION

Definitions

1.1 In this guidance —
The “2009 Act’ means the Policing and Crime Act 2009
The "1982 Act’ means the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1982
The “2003 Act” means the Licensing Act 2003
“Section 27" means section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009
“Schedule 3" means Schedule 3 to the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982

Policing and Crime Act 2009

1.2 Section 27 introduces a new category of sex establishment called
‘sexual entertainment venue', which will allow local authorities to
regulate lap dancing clubs and similar venues under Schedule 3.

1.3  Section 27 gives local authorities more powers to control the number
and location of lap dancing clubs and similar venues in their area.
These powers are not mandatory and will only apply where they are
adopted by local authorities. Where adopted, these provisions will allow
local authorities to refuse an application on potentially wider grounds
than is permitted under the 2003 Act and will give local people a
greater say over the regulation of lap dancing clubs and similar venues

in their area.
The Guidance
1.4  The guidance is provided for local authorities carrying out their

functions under Schedule 3, as amended by section 27. It will also be
of use to operators, the police and the general public.

Page 15



1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

Interpretation of the relevant primary and secondary legislation is
ultimately a matter for the courts. However, local authorities are
encouraged to have regard to the guidance when exercising their
functions (although there is no statutory requirement to do so) in order
to promote best practice and consistency across England and Wales.

The guidance is composed of 3 sections. Section 2 focuses on the
2009 Act and the definition of ‘sexual entertainment venue’. Section 3
provides an explanation of the meaning and effect of Schedule 3 to the
1982 Act and section 4 provides guidance on the transitional provisions
as set out in the transitional orders: The Policing and Crime Act 2009
(Commencement No.1 and Transitional and Saving
Provisions)(England) Order 2010 and the Policing and Crime Act 2009
(Consequential Provisions )(England) Order 2010 and any equivalent
orders made by Welsh Ministers in respect to Wales.

Apart from extending the scope of the 1982 Act to cover the licensing
of sexual entertainment venues and removing the sex encounter
establishment category in those local authority areas that adopt the
new provisions, the 2009 Act and the associated secondary legislation
makes only minor changes to the operation of Schedule 3.

Section 27 of, and Schedule 3 to, the 2009 Act come into force in
England on 6" April as does the Palicing and Crime Act 2009
(Consequential Provisions) (England) Order 2010. In Wales, the
equivalent provisions come into force on 8" May 2010.

Page 16



POLICING AND CRIME ACT 2009

Meaning of Sexual Entertainment Venue

2.1

2.2

23

2.4

Paragraph 2A of Schedule 3 as inserted by section 27 sets out the
meaning of a ‘sexual entertainment venue’ and ‘relevant entertainment’
for the purposes of these provisions. A sexual entertainment venue is
defined as “any premises at which relevant entertainment is provided
before a live audience for the financial gain of the organiser or the

entertainer.”

The meaning of ‘relevant entertainment’ is “any live performance or live
display of nudity which is of such a nature that, ignoring financial gain,
it must reasonably be assumed to be provided solely or principally for
the purpose of sexually stimulating any member of an audience
(whether by verbal or other means).” An audience can consist of just
one person {e.g. where the entertainment takes place in private

booths).

While local authorities should judge each case on its merits, we would
expect that the definition of relevant entertainment would apply to the
following forms of entertainment as they are commonly understood:

e Lap dancing

e Pole dancing
e Table dancing
e Strip shows

o Peep shows

e Live sex shows

The above list is not exhaustive and, as the understanding of the exact
nature of these descriptions may vary, should only be treated as
indicative. Ultimately, decisions to licence premises as sexual
entertainment venues shall depend on the content of the entertainment

provided and not the name it is given.

Page 17



2.5

For the purposes of these provisions a premises includes any vessel,
vehicle or stall but does not include a private dwelling to which the

public are not admitted.

Nudity

2.6

2.7

It is important to note that although the definition of relevant
entertainment makes reference to a ‘live display of nudity’, the mere
fact that there is a display of nudity does not mean that a sex
establishment licence will necessarily be required. For example, if the
display forms part of a drama or dance performance in a theatre, in
most cases it cannot reasonably be assumed to be provided solely or
principally for the purpose of sexually stimulating any member of the

audience.

Paragraph 2A(14) of Schedule 3 sets out the definition of a ‘display of
nudity’. In the case of a woman, it means exposure of her nipples,
pubic area, genitals or anus and, in the case of a man; it means

exposure of his pubic area, genitals or anus.

The Organiser

28

2.9

The relevant entertainment must be provided for the financial gain of
the ‘organiser’ or ‘entertainer’. The 'organiser’ means any person who
is responsible for the organisation or management of the relevant
entertainment or the premises at which the relevant entertainment is
provided. In most circumstances, this will refer to the manager of the
premises, but could also refer someone who is responsible for
organising the relevant entertainment on behalf of the persons
responsible for the management of the premises.

The ‘organiser’ must be someone who is in a position of responsibility
over the provision of the relevant entertainment and should not be
interpreted to mean a member of staff who is merely employed to work

during the provision of relevant entertainment. It is only necessary for
8

Page 18



one person to hold a sexual entertainment venue licence for premises,
even if there is more than one person who is responsible for the
organisation or management of the relevant entertainment or the

premises.
Spontaneous Entertainment

2.10 Where activities that would otherwise be considered to involve the
provision of relevant entertainment take place, but are not provided for
the financial gain of the organiser or entertainer, such as a
spontaneous display of nudity or a lap dance by a customer or guest,
the premises will not be considered a sexual entertainment venue by
virtue of those circumstances alone. This is because the relevant
entertainment must be provided for the financial gain of the organiser
or entertainer. However, it should be noted that an organiser may be
considered to have provided the entertainment where he has permitted
the activity to take place, whether expressly or impliedly.

Premises that are not sexual entertainment venues

2.11 Paragraph 2A(3) of Schedule 3 sets out those premises that are not

sexual entertainment venues. These are:

» sex shops and sex cinemas (which are separately defined in
Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act);

e premises which provide relevant entertainment on an infrequent
basis. These are defined as premises where-
a) no relevant entertainment has been provided on more than 11
occasions within a 12 month period;
b) no such occasion has begun within a period of one month
beginning with the end of the previous occasions; and
¢) no such occasion has lasted longer than 24 hours.

o other premises or types of performances or displays exempted by

an order of the Secretary of State.

2.12 Premises which provide relevant entertainment on an infrequent basis

will continue to be reguiated under the 2003 Act, insofar as they are
9

Page 19



providing regulated entertainment under that Act, either by virtue of a
premises licence or club premises certificate issued under Part 3 or
Part 4 or a temporary events notice issued under Part 5 of that Act.
Any premises that provide relevant entertainment on more occasions,
more frequently or for a longer period of time than is permitted under
the exemption will be operating as a sexual entertainment venue and
will have committed an offence under Schedule 3 unless they hold a
sexual entertainment venue licence or the local authority has waived

the requirement for such a licence.

Amendments to the Licensing Act 2003

2.13

2.14

215

Schedule 7 to the 2009 Act amends the 2003 Act to ensure that
premises for which a sexual entertainment venue licence is required or
held (or for which the requirement has been waived under paragraph 7
of Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act) do not also require a premises licence,
club premises certificate or temporary events notice in order to provide
relevant entertainment. This is because such entertainment is
expressly excluded from the definition of regulated entertainment found
in the 2003 Act. However, if the premises also carry on other
licensable activities (e.g. the sale of alcohol or the provision of
regulated entertainment that is not relevant entertainment), they will
nevertheless continue to require a premises licence, club premises
certificate or temporary events notice under the 2003 Act for those
other activities, subject to any exceptions contained in that Act.

In practice, this will mean that the vast majority of lap dancing clubs
and similar venues will require both a sexual entertainment venue
licence for the provision of relevant entertainment and a premises
licence or club premises certificate for the sale of alcohol or provision
of other types of regulated entertainment not covered by the definition

of relevant entertainment.

Live music or the playing of recorded music which is integral to the
provision of relevant entertainment, such as lap dancing, for which a

sexual entertainment licence is required, is specifically excluded from
10

Page 20



2.16

the definition of regulated entertainment in the 2003 Act. Therefore, a
sexual entertainment venue will not require a premises licence or club
premises certificate just because it plays recorded music for a
performer to dance to. (Nor will providing entertainment facilities for the
purposes of the provision of relevant entertainment be regulated
entertainment under the 2003 Act).

Premises which fall under the exemption created for infrequent
entertainment do not require a sexual entertainment venue licence but
will instead need an appropriate authorisation under the 2003 Act, for
example, to cover the performance of dance. The exemption from
requirements of the 2003 Act for live music or the playing of recorded
music which is integral to relevant entertainment does not apply to

such venues.

Consultation with Local People

2.17

2.18

2.19

2.20

If a local authority has not made a resolution to adopt the provisions
introduced by section 27 within one year of it coming into force it must,
as soon as is reasonably practicable, consult local people about
whether they should make such a resolution.

The purpose of this duty is to ensure that local authorities consider the
views of local people where, for whatever reason, they have not

adopted the provisions.

This duty should be seen to be an extension to existing general duties
on local authorities to consult and involve local people when exercising

their functions.

The 2009 Act is not prescriptive about how local authorities should
consult with local people in order to comply with this duty. Local
authorities have extensive experience of engaging with local people
and will know what works best in their individual areas. Clearly, the
Secretary of State expects that any consultation exercise carried out

under this duty will be fair and meaningful. Local authorities should
11

Page 21



2.21

2.22

seek to make any relevant information available to local people in order
to inform their understanding and publish the outcomes of the

consultation on the internet.

In practice, local authorities may decide to consult local people on this
matter when they consult and involve local people on broader local
priorities and crime and disorder or anti-social behaviour priorities as
part of their work to develop Local Area Agreements/Local Delivery
Agreements and crime and disorder strategies, as required under
various existing duties, including, section 138 of the Local Government
and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 and regulation 12 of the
Crime and Disorder (Formulation and Implementation of Strategy)
Regulations 2007. This will ensure that consultations are not onerous
and form part of the ongoing engagement with local communities
undertaken by all local authorities.

For the purposes of this duty ‘local people’ are defined as anyone who
lives or works in the local authority area.

12

Page 22



SCHEDULE 3 TO THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT
(MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1982

The Appropriate Authority

3.1

The appropriate authority is responsible for determining applications for
sex establishment licences. For the purposes of the 1982 Act
‘appropriate authority’ means the local authority which passed a
resolution under section 2 of that Act to adopt Schedule 3 in their area.
‘Local authority’ means—

(a) the council of a district (including a unitary County Council) or, in
Wales, the principal council’;

(b) the council of a London borough; and

(c) the Common Council of the City of London.

Committee or Sub-Committee

3.2

3.3

Functions under Schedule 3 are the responsibility of the full council of
the appropriate authority, as defined above. Under section 101 of the
Local Government Act 1972, local authorities may arrange for the
discharge of these responsibilities by a committee or sub-committee of

the appropriate authority.

An authority may delegate its functions to those who sit on its licensing
committee set up to discharge licensing functions under the 2003 Act.
However, when dealing with an application for a sex establishment
licence, the members of the committee would not be acting as the
licensing committee under the 2003 Act and would instead be
exercising their functions under Schedule 3.

' See section 2 of the 1982 Act. Section 17 of the Local Government {(Wales) Act 1994
provides that legislative references to district councils are to be interpreted as references to
principal councils in Wales. Unitary County Councils have all the functions and powers of

district councils.

13

Page 23



Adopting the Provisions

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

Section 27 comes into force on 6™ April 2010 in England and 8" May in
Wales?. On or following this date local authorities may resolve to adopt
Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act as amended by the 2009 Act so that it has

effect in their area.

Although many local authorities will have already adopted Schedule 3
to the 1982 Act for the licensing of sex shops and sex cinemas, a
further resolution is necessary before the provisions introduced by
Section 27 will have effect in the local authority area. However, where
a local authority has not resolved to adopt Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act
before the coming into force of Section 27, the amendments made to
Schedule 3 by section 27 will apply automatically if a resolution to
adopt Schedule 3 is made subsequently (see Schedule 3 to the 2009

Act).

The procedure for local authorities to adopt Schedule 3 as amended by
section 27 is set out is section 2 of the 1982 Act. Firstly, the local
authority must pass a resolution specifying that Schedule 3 or, in the
case of an authority where Schedule 3 is already in force, the
amendments made by section 27 to that Schedule, shall apply to their
area and the day on which it or they shall come into force in the area.
The specified day must be more than one month after the day on which

the resolution was passed.

The local authority shall publish notice that they have passed a
resolution under section 2 of the 1982 Act or (in cases where Schedule
3 is already in force but the local authority is adopting the amendments
made by section 27) paragraph 2(2) of Schedule 3 to the 2009 Act for
two consecutive weeks in a local newspaper that is circulated in their
area. The first publication shall not be later than 28 days before the day
specified in the resolution for the provisions to come into force in the

% Section 27 (11) was brought into force on 2nd March 2010 but only for the purpose of

making the transitional orders.

14

Page 24



3.8

local authority’s area. The notice should state the general effect of
Schedule 3.

While there is no statutory duty to do so, prior to deciding whether to
pass a resolution, local authorities may, as a matter of good practice,
wish to seek the views of local people and businesses. The Secretary
of State also encourages local authorities to engage with known sexual
entertainment venues at the earliest possible opportunity once a
decision to adopt the provisions has been made, to ensure affected
businesses are aware of what action they will need to take in order to

comply with the new regime.

Requirement for a Sex Establishment Licence

3.9

3.10

Any person wishing to operate a sex establishment as defined by
Schedule 3 requires a sex establishment licence, unless the
requirement for a licence has been waived by the appropriate authority.

An applicant can apply for a waiver either as part of the application for
a licence or separately. The local authority can grant a waiver if they
consider that to require a licence would be unreasonable or
inappropriate. Where a waiver is granted the appropriate authority
should inform the applicant that a waiver has been granted. The waiver
may last for such a period that the appropriate authority think fit, but
can be terminated by the appropriate authority at any time with 28 days

notice.

Premises that are deemed to be Sexual Entertainment Venues

3.1

Paragraph 27A of Schedule 3 deems premises with licences to operate
as sexual entertainment venues to be sexual entertainment venues
whilst their licence remains in force, irrespective of how frequently they
are or have been providing relevant entertainment. This remains the
case even if premises operate within the exemption for infrequent

events.

15

Page 25



3.12 If an operator with a sexual entertainment venue licence is operating
within the exemption for infrequent events and no longer wants their
premises to be treated as a sexual entertainment venue (e.g. because
they are no longer operating as a lap dancing club) they may write to
the relevant local authority to request that their licence be cancelled.
Upon receiving such a request from a licence-holder a local authority
must cancel the licence in question.

Notices

3.13 Applicants for a sex establishment licence must give public notice of
the application by publishing an advertisement in a local newspaper
that is circulated in the local authority area no later than 7 days after
the date the application is made.

3.14 Where the application relates to premises, a notice should also be
displayed on or near the premises in a place where it can be
conveniently read by members of the public. The notice should be
displayed for a period of 21 day beginning with the date the
applications was made.

3.15 Al notices should be in the form prescribed by the appropriate authority
and identify the premises or, if the application relates to a vehicle,
vessel or stall, specify where it will be used as a sex establishment.

3.16 There are similar notification requirements for applications made under
the 2003 Act. Where an applicant is making an application under both
Schedule 3 and the 2003 Act at the same time they may wish to
combine these requirements where permitted.

Application Forms

3.17 Unlike the 2003 Act there is no prescribed application form for an
application made under Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act. However, the
application must be in writing and contain the details set out in

paragraph 10 of Schedule 3 along with such other details as the
16

Page 26



appropriate authority may reasonably require. Local authorities must
provide for applications to be made electronically and may produce and
publish recommended application forms for sex establishment licences
setting out all the details required.

Single Point of Contact

3.18

3.19

3.20

Fees

3.21

3.22

Following amendments to sub-paragraph 10(14) made by the Provision
of Services Regulations 2009, where an application for the grant,
renewal or transfer of a licence is made by means of a relevant
electronic facility it will be the responsibility of the appropriate authority
to send a copy of an application to the chief officer of police, not later
than 7 days after the date the application is received.

Where an application is made by any other means the responsibility to
send a copy of the application to the chief officer of police within 7 days
of the application being made will remain the responsibility of the

applicant.

For the purpose of Schedule 3 a relevant electronic facility means the
electronic assistance facility referred to in regulation 38 of the Provision
of Services Regulations 2009 or any facility established and maintained
by the appropriate authority for the purpose of receiving applications

under this Schedule electronically.

Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act states that an application for the grant,
renewal, variations or transfer of a sex establishment licence shall pay
a reasonable fee determined by the appropriate authorities, but does
not expand on what would be considered to be reasonable.

However, local authorities should have regard to the following
documents when determining their fee: The European Services

17

Page 27



Directive: Guidance for Local Authorities® and LACORS Guidance on
the impact of the Services Directive on councils setting and
administering local licence fees within the service sector.*

Objections

3.23

3.24

When considering an application for the grant, renewal or transfer of a
licence the appropriate authority should have regard to any
observations submitted to it by the chief officer of police and any
objections that they have received from anyone else within 28 of the
application. Any person can object to an application but the objection
should be relevant to the grounds set out in paragraph 12 for refusing a
licence. Objections should not be based on moral grounds/values® and
local authorities should not consider objections that are not relevant to
the grounds set out in paragraph 12. Objectors must give notice of their
objection in writing, stating the general terms of the objection.

Where the appropriate authority receives notice of any objection the
authority shall, before considering the application, give notice in writing
of the general terms of the objection to the applicant. However, the
appropriate authority shall not without the consent of the person
making the objection reveal their name or address to the applicant.

Hearings

3.25

3.26

Under paragraph 10(19) of Schedule 3, before refusing an application,
all applicants should be given the opportunity to appear before and be
heard by the local authority committee or sub-committee that is
responsible for determining the application.

Schedule 3 does not make explicit provision for objectors to be heard,
but this does not mean that such hearings cannot take place. Rather,
case law on this matter states that while local authorities are under no

% nito:/fwww berr.qov. uk/files/file50026.pdf

www.lacors.gov.uk

®R v Newcastle upon Tyne City Council ex parte The Christian Institute [2001] B.L.G.R. 165

18

Page 28



obligation to offer an oral hearing to objectors, they may do so at their
discretion. Although a local authority is under a duty to consider any
objections made within 28 days of the application, it has discretion to
hear later objections provided the applicant is given the opportunity to

deal with those objections.$

Refusal of a Licence

3.27

3.28

Paragraph 12 of Schedule 3 sets out the grounds for refusing an
application for the grant, renewal or transfer of a licence.

A licence must not be granted:

(a) to a person under the age of 18;

(b) to a person who is for the time being disqualified due to the
person having had a previous licence revoked in the area of the
appropriate authority within the last 12 months;

(c) toaperson, other than a body corporate, who is not resident in an
EEA State or was not so resident throughout the period of six
months immediately preceding the date when the application was
made; or

(d) toa body corporate which is not incorporated in an EEA State; or

(e) to a person who has, within a period of 12 months immediately
preceding the date when the application was made, been refused
the grant or renewal of a licence for the premises, vehicle, vessel
or stall in respect of which the application is made, unless the
refusal has been reversed on appeal.

Alicence may be refused where:

(a) the applicant is unsuitable to hold the licence by reason of having
been convicted of an offence or for any other reason;

(b) if the licence were to be granted, renewed or transferred the
business to which it relates would be managed by or carried on for
the benefit of a person, other than the applicant, who would be
refused the grant, renewal or transfer of such a licence if he made

the application himself;

® R v Plymouth City Council v Quietlynn [1998] Q.B. 114,

19

Page 29



3.29

3.30

3.31

(c) the number of sex establishments, or of sex establishments of a
particular kind, in the relevant locality at the time the application is
determined is equal to or exceeds the number which the authority
consider is appropriate for that locality;

(d) that the grant or renewal of the licence would be inappropriate,
having regard—

(i) to the character of the relevant locality; or

(if) to the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put; or

(ii) to the layout, character or condition of the premises, vehicle,
vessel or stall in respect of which the application is made.

A decision to refuse a licence must be relevant to one or more of the

above grounds.

When determining a licence application, the local authority must have
regard to any rights the applicant may have under Article 10 (right to
freedom of expression) and Article 1, Protocol 1 (protection of property)
of the European Convention on Human Rights.’

The Provision of Services Regulations 2009® amended Schedule 3 to
the 1982 Act to state that, if having considered an application for the
grant, renewal or transfer of a licence, the appropriate authority
decides to refuse it on one or more of the above grounds, it must
provide the applicant with reasons for the decision in writing.

Relevant Locality

3.32

Paragraph 12(3)(c) and 12(3)(d) of Scheduie 3 allow appropriate
authorities to refuse applications on grounds related to an assessment
of the “relevant locality”. A licence can be refused if either, at the time
the application is determined the number of sex establishments, or sex
establishments of a particular kind, in the relevant locality is equal to or
exceeds the number that the authority considers appropriate for that
locality; or that a sex establishment would be inappropriate having

’ Belfast City Council v Miss Behavin’ Ltd (Northern Ireland) (2007) [2007] UKHL 19

8 Regulation 47

20

Page 30



3.33

3.34

3.35

3.36

regard to the character of the relevant locality, the use to which any
premises in the vicinity are put or the layout, character or condition of
the premises. Nil may be the appropriate number.

Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act does not define “relevant locality” further

than to say that:

(a) in relation to premises, it is the locality where they are situated;
and

(b) in relation to a vehicle, vessel or stall, any locality where it is
desired to use it as a sex establishment.

Clearly, the decision regarding what constitutes the ‘relevant locality’ is
a matter for the appropriate authority. However, such questions must
be decided on the facts of the individual application.’

Therefore, it is reasonable and potentially useful to future applicants,
for a local authority to decide in advance of receiving any applications
that certain areas are, or are not, appropriate locations for a sex
establishment or a particular number of sex establishments.
Nevertheless, all applications must be considered on their individual

merits.

When considering a particular application case law has indicated that
the relevant locality does not have to be a clearly pre-defined area nor
are local authorities required to be able to define its precise
boundaries. Therefore, while a local authority is not prevented from
defining the exact area of the relevant locality, it is equally free to
conclude that it simply refers to the area which surrounds the premises
specified in the application and does not require further definition.
Nevertheless a local authority’s view of what constitutes a locality could
be open to challenge if they took a completely unreasonable view of
the area covered, for example, by concluding that two sex
establishments 200 miles away from one another were in the same

¥ See R v Peterborough City Council ex parte Quietlynn 85 L.G.R. 249 for further guidance.

21

Page 31



3.37

3.38

locality. Case law also indicates that a relevant locality cannot be an
entire local authority area or an entire town or city. '

Once the appropriate authority has determined the relevant locality, it
should seek to make an assessment of the ‘character’ of the relevant
locality and how many, if any, sex establishments, or sex
establishments of a particular kind, it considers appropriate for that

relevant locality.

Section 27 amends paragraph 12(3)(c) of Schedule 3 to allow local
authorities to determine an appropriate number of sex establishments
of a particular kind. In practice, this means that the appropriate
authority may, for example, decide that a particular locality is suitable
for a sex shop but is not suitable for a sexual entertainment venue or

vice versa.

Licence Conditions

3.39

3.40

Once the appropriate authority has decided to grant a licence they are
able to impose terms, conditions and restrictions on that licence, either
in the form of conditions specific to the individual licence under
paragraph 8 of Schedule 3 or standard conditions applicable to all sex
establishments, or particular types of sex establishments, prescribed
by regulations made by the appropriate authority under paragraph 13
of Schedule 3.

Paragraph 13 provides examples of the matters that standard
conditions may address which include but are not restricted to:

e The hours of opening and closing

¢ Displays and advertisements on or in sex establishments

¢ The visibility of the interior of a sex establishment to passers-by

¢ Any change of use from one kind of sex establishment to another

YRy Peterborough City Council ex parte Quietlynn 85 L.G.R. 249

22

Page 32



3.41

3.42

Where the appropriate authority decides to produce standard
conditions under paragraph 13 they will apply to every licence granted,
renewed or transferred by the authority unless they have been

expressly excluded or varied.

Most sexual entertainment venues will require a 2003 Act licence as
well as a sex establishment licence. Where this is the case, local
authorities should avoid duplicating licence conditions and should
ensure that conditions imposed on the each licence are relevant to the
activities authorised by that licence. For example, conditions relating to
the sale of alcohol should only appear on a premises licences or clubs
premises certificate and should not be imposed on sexual
entertainment venue licence. Likewise, conditions relating the
provisions of relevant entertainment should appear on the sexual
entertainment venue licence and not a premises licence or club
premises certificate. Local authorities should also avoid imposing
conditions on either licence that are contradictory.

Duration of Licences

3.43 Licences for sex establishments can be granted for up to one year.
Appeals
3.44 In the event that the appropriate authority refuses an application for the

grant, renewal or transfer of a sex establishment licence the applicant
may appeal the decision in a magistrates’ court, unless the application
was refused under 12(3)(c) or (d), in which case the applicant can only

challenge the refusal by way of judicial review.

Licensing Policies

3.45

While local authorities are not required to publish a licensing policy
relating to sex establishments they can do so if they wish as long as it

23

Page 33



does not prevent any individual application from being considered on

its merits at the time the application is made. !

3.46 A licensing policy for sex establishments might include statements
about where local authorities are likely to consider to be appropriate or
inappropriate locations for such venues. This could be set out in
general terms by reference to a particular type of premises, such as a
school or place of worship, or more specifically, by reference to a

defined locality.

3.47 Local authorities could also use a licensing policy to indicate how many
sex establishments, or sex establishments of a particular kind, they
consider to be appropriate for a particular locality.

3.48 Local authorities can also produce different policies or a separate set of
criteria for different types of sex establishments. This might be
appropriate to reflect distinctions between the operating requirements
of different sex establishments or the fact that the location that a local
authority considers appropriate for a sex shop may be different to that

of a sexual entertainment venue.

Offences

3.49 The offences under Schedule 3 are set out in paragraphs 20 to 23 of
that Schedule and include:

e knowingly causing or permitting the use of any premises as a sex
establishment without a licence;

¢ Dbeing the holder of a licence, knowingly employing a personin a
sex establishment who is disqualified from holding a licence;

e being the holder of a licence, knowingly contravenes, or without
reasonable excuse knowingly permits the contravention of, a term,
condition or restriction specified in a licence;

e Dbeing the servant or agent of the holder of a licence, without
reasonable excuse knowingly contravenes, or without reasonablie

" R v Peterborough City Council ex parte Quietlynn Ltd (1986) 85 LGR 249
24

Page 34



3.50

3.51

excuse knowingly permits the contravention of, a term, condition or
restriction specified in a licence;

¢ being the holder of a licence, without reasonable excuse knowingly
permits a person under the age of 18 to enter the establishment

» being the holder of a licence, employs a person known to them to
be under 18 years of age in the business of the establishment.

A person guilty of any of the above offences is liable on summary
conviction to a fine not exceeding £20,000.

It is also an offence for the holder of a licence, without reasonable
excuse to fail to exhibit a copy of the licence and any standard
conditions applicable to the licence in a suitable place as specified in
the licence. A person guilty to this offence shall be liable on summary
conviction to a fine not exceeding level 3 on the standard scale.

Provisions Relating to Existing Premises

3.52

Where a local authority resolves that Schedule 3 apply in their area
having not previously made such a resolution, paragraphs 28 and 29
will have effect for the purpose of sex shop, sex cinemas and hostess
bars, but will not have effect for the purpose of sexual entertainment
venues. The transitional provisions relating to sexual entertainment

venues are explained in part 4 of this guidance.

The Services Directive

3.53

3.54

Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act constitutes an authorisation scheme under
Article 9 of the EU Services Directive 2006/123/EC (“the Directive”)
which was implemented in the UK by the Provision of Services
Regulations 2009 (“2009 Regulations”), which came into force on 28th
December 2009. Local authorities must ensure they comply with the
Regulations when applying the licensing provisions in Schedule 3.

The Department of Business, Innovation and Skills (BIS) has produced

guidance for both businesses and local authorities to assist in
25

Page 35



3.556

understanding the impact of the Directive and 2009 Regulations and
what service providers and relevant authorities must do in order to

comply. Both guidance documents can be found on the BIS website:

http://iww.berr.gov.uk/whatwedo/europeandtrade/europe/services-
directive/page9583.html

In particular, the 2009 Regulations may affect the way in which local
authorities set application fees, process applications and grant

licences.

Page 36

26



TRANSITIONAL PROVISIONS

4.1

This section provides guidance on the transitional provisions as set out
in the Policing and Crime Act 2009 (Commencement No.1, and
Transitional and Saving Provisions)(England) Order 2010 (“the
Transitional Order”) and the Policing and Crime Act 2009
(Consequential Provisions)(England) Order 2010 (“the Consequential
Order’}) and the equivalent orders made by Welsh Ministers for Wales.

Transitional Period

4.2

4.3

The ‘transitional period’ will last for 12-months beginning with the date
that the local authority resolves that Schedule 3 as amended by the
2009 Act will come into force in their area (‘the 1st appointed day’). Six
months following the 1st appointed day will be known as the ‘2nd
appointed day’ and the day on which the transitional period ends will be
known as the ‘3rd appointed day’.

The appointed days will vary across local authority areas depending on
when individual local authorities resolve that the provisions will come

into force in their area.

Existing Operators

4.4

To allow time to comply with the new regime, existing operators, who,
immediately before the 1st appointed day, have a 2003 Act licence and
lawfully use premises as a sexual entertainment venue under that
licence or are undertaking preparatory work to use the venue in that
way will be allowed to continue to provide relevant entertainment until
the 3rd appointed day or the determination of any application they have
submitted before that time (including any appeal against the refusal to

grant a licence), whichever is later.

27

Page 37



4.5 ‘“Preparatory work" refers to work carried out by an operator, such as a
refurbishment or refit, in order that they can use the premises as a
sexual entertainment venue in the future. The operator will have been
granted a 2003 Act licence before the 1% appointed day but will not
have used the premises as a sexual entertainment venue by that date.
It is likely that such operators will be known to a local authority.
However, where a dispute arises between a local authority and an
licence-holder over whether the licence-holder qualifies as an existing
operator by virtue of this provision the local authority will need to seek
evidence from the licence-holder to demonstrate that they clearly
intended to operate a sexual entertainment venue in the future and

work had been done to achieve this end.

4.6 Forthe purposes of the Transitional Order a “2003 Act Licence” means
a premises licence or club premises certificate under which it is lawful
to provide relevant entertainment.

New Applicants

4.7  New applicants are people who wish to use premises as a sexual
entertainment venue after the 1st appointed day but do not aiready
have a premises licence or club premises certificate to operate as such
under the 2003 Act or do have such a licence but have not taken any
steps towards operating as such. After the 1st appointed day new
applicants will not be able to operate as a sexual entertainment venue
until they have been granted a sexual entertainment venue licence.

Determining Applications Received On or Before the 2nd Appointed Day

4.8 Applicants will be able to submit their application for a sexual
entertainment venue from the 1st appointed day onwards.

28

Page 38



4.9 As the appropriate authority is able to refuse applications having regard
to the number of sex establishment they consider appropriate for a
particular locaiity, all applications made on or after the 1% appointed
day but on or before the 2nd appointed day shall be considered
together. This will ensure that applicants are given sufficient time to
submit their application and all applications received on or before the
2nd appointed day are considered on their individual merit and not on a

first come first serve basis.

4.10 No applications shall be determined before the 2nd appointed day.
After the 2nd appointed day the appropriate authority shall decide what
if any licences should be granted. If a new applicant is granted a
licence it will take effect immediately. If an existing operator is granted
a licence, it will not take effect until the 3rd appointed day, up to which
point they will be allowed to continue to operate under their existing

premises licence or club premises certificate.
Determining Applications Received After the 2nd Appointed Day

4.11 Applications made after the 2nd appointed day shall be considered
when they are made but only once all applications made on or before
that date have been determined. However, reference to determination
here does not include references to the determination of any appeal

against the refusal of a licence.

4.12 As with applications received on or before the 2nd appointed day,
licences granted to new applicants shall take effect inmediately and
licences granted to existing operators shall take effect from the 3rd
appointed day or, if later, the date the application is determined.

Outstanding Applications

4.13 Local authorities should attempt where possible to determine
outstanding applications made under the 2003 Act, which include an
application for the provision of relevant entertainment, before the date

29

Page 39



4.14

that Schedule 3 as amended by the 2009 Act comes into force in their

area.

Where it has not been possible to determine application before the 1st
appointed day, local authorities should advise applicants that they will
need to submit an application for a sex establishment licence as set out
in Schedule 3 if they wish to provide relevant entertainment. From the
1st appointed day onwards outstanding applicants shall be dealt with
as though they are new applicants.

Existing Licence Conditions

4.15

4.16

4.17

In many cases licences granted under the 2003 Act to existing
operators will contain conditions that relate expressly and exclusively to
the provision of relevant entertainment. Such a condition might prohibit
contact between a performer and customer during a lap dance. In
these cases, in order to avoid duplication, where conditions on
premises licences or club premises certificates relate only to the
provision of relevant entertainment, they shall be read as if they were
deleted from the 3rd appointed day onwards.

In cases where conditions on a premises licence or clubs premises
certificate are inconsistent with, and less onerous than, the conditions
in the licence granted under the 1982 Act they shall likewise be read as

though they have been deleted.

Where a local authority decides to grant a sex establishment licence to
an existing operator, who is subject to conditions on their existing
premises licence or club premises certificate that relate expressly to
the provision of relevant entertainment, they may wish to replicate the
existing conditions on the new sex establishment licence if they believe
that the existing conditions are sufficient. However, they could equally
decide to impose new conditions consistent with Schedule 3 if they
believe that new or additional conditions are necessary.

30

Page 40



4.18

Although the Transitional Order does not require redundant conditions
to be physically removed from a premises licence or club premises
certificate, operators and local authorities may agree that this is
desirable in order to clarify the operator’s legal obligations. Such
changes can be made via the minor variations procedure under section

41A of the 2003 Act.

ECHR Considerations

4.19

4.20

The Transitional Order allows local authorities to refuse applications,
whether they are from existing operators or new applicants, on one or
more grounds set out in paragraph 12 of Schedule 3. When making
such decisions, local authorities must take into account any rights the
existing operators may have under Article 1, Protocol 1 of the
European Convention on Human Rights (which entitles every person to
the peaceful enjoyment of their possessions) and Article 10 (freedom of

expression).

In light of the leading case of Belfast City Council v Miss Behavin’ Ltd
(Northern Ireland)'? it would be prudent for local authorities to assume
that freedom of expression includes the right to use particular premises
as sexual entertainment venues and that a person who is denied the
right to use his premises as a sexual entertainment venue where he
already has a licence to do so under the 2003 Act (or in future under
the 1982 Act) has been deprived of possessions. (Some Lords did not
decide this point or disagreed that such rights were engaged and
therefore it would still be open to local authorities to argue that such
rights were not engaged in a particular case). However, in any event,
the House of Lords were agreed that such rights would only be
engaged at a low level. This led Lord Hoffman to say that if the local
authority exercises its powers rationally and in accordance with the
purposes of the statutory provisions, it would require very unusual facts
for it to amount to a disproportionate restriction on Convention rights.

12 12007] UKHL 19

31

Page 41



4.21 Nevertheless, local authorities would be well advised to consider
whether any interference with the applicant’s rights under Article 10 or
Article 1, Protacol 1 of the European Convention on Human Rights is
necessary and proportionate for the prevention of disorder or crime, for
the protection of health or morals or for the protection of the rights and
freedoms of others or, in the case of Article 1, Protocol 1, can be

justified in the general interest.

Changes to Licensing Policies

4.22 Many local authorities who have already adopted Schedule 3 will have
published a licensing policy for sex establishments. Such policies may
provide a useful guide to potential applicants about whether a particular
application is likely to be successful or not.

4.23 Upon resolving to adopt the sexual entertainment venue provisions
introduced by the 2009 Act, local authorities should ensure that their
licensing policies for sex establishments are up to date and reflect the
changes introduced by Section 27. This could mean updating existing
policies or producing a policy specific to regulation of sexual

entertainment venues.

L.ondon
Sex Encounter Establishments

4.24 London local authorities which have adopted Schedule 3 to the 1982
Act as amended by the Greater London Council (General Powers) Act
1986 are able to regulate sex encounter establishments. However,
under sub-paragraph 3A(i) premises that hold a premises licence or
club premises certificate for the provision of regulated entertainment or
late night refreshment are not regarded as sex encounter
establishments. This means that, in practice, there are very few, if any,
premises that are licensed as sex encounter establishments.

32

Page 42



4.25

4.26

Therefore, the transitional provisions set out that where a local
authority, which has previously adopted provisions to regulate sex
encounter establishments, passes a resolution to adopt Schedule 3, as
amended by section 27, the existing sex encounter establishment
category will be replaced by the new sexual entertainment venue

category.

In these circumstances, an existing sex encounter establishment
licence will be treated as though it had been granted under the new
sexual entertainment venue regime with any terms, conditions and

restrictions carried over.

Hostess Bars

4.27

4.28

The hostess bar category of sex establishment, as introduced by
section 33 of the London Local Authorities Act 2007, is largely
unaffected by the 2009 Act provisions.

In cases where a London local authority has already resoived that the
hostess bar category has effect in their area, they will be able to retain
this category after the amendments made by the 2009 Act have been
adopted and the sex encounter establishment category has been
repealed, subject to the amendments made to Schedule 3 by the 2009
Act. Where London local authorities have not adopted the sexual
entertainment venue provisions, it will still be open for them to resolve
to adopt the hostess bar category after the 2009 Act provisions have
been adopted without having to adopt the sex encounter establishment

category.

Soliciting for Custom

4.29

Under Section 22 of the London Local Authorities Act 2004, as
amended by Section 72 of the London Local Authorities Act 2007, it is
an offence in London to solicit for custom for a sex establishment.
However, paragraph 2A provides a defence if the premises concerned

are licensed under Part 3 of the 2003 Act.
33

Page 43



4.30 When a London local authority resolves to adopt the provisions
introduced by Section 27, it will be a defence if the premises are
licensed as a sexual entertainment venue under Schedule 3 of the
1982 Act or are operating lawfully under a 2003 Act licence during the
transitional period at the time of the alleged offence.

34

Page 44



ANNEX A: GUIDE TO TRANSITIONAL PERIOD AND EXISTING

OPERATORS
Has the local No
authority adopted
powers to regulate »  SEV licence not
\ SEVs? (Contact required
. local authority if
Appointed Days occhenat;n)ty
1st Appointed Day N oot o/
The day on which the SEV regime Yes
comes into force in a local h
authority area and the beginning of Areyouan No SEV licence not
the transitional period existing operator? required or see
(See guidance or quide for new
nd Appoimed Day contact.loqa! applicants if you
The day 6 months after the 1st authority if want to operate an
appointed day uncertain) SEV
S Y
3rd Appointed Day Yes
The day 6 months after the 2nd
appointed day and the end of the ( )
transitional period Doyouwantte | N° | Allowed to operate
operate a SEV as a SEV untd the
NB: If you are uncertain as to what after the 3rd 3 appointed day
dates the appointed days will fall appainted day? under.existing
please contact your local authority. authorisation
ek e
k / Yes
Have you
submitted a SEV
application on or
before the 2
appointed day?
Yes HNO
[ Application
All Application considered once
received on or applications
before 2nd received on or
appointed day before 20d
considered appointed day
together have been
J determined J
[ Granted? [ Granted? j
Yes No Yes Yy No
Can continue to Can continue to
SEV licence takes operate as an SEV SEV licence takes operate as a SEV
effect on 3rd until the 3rd effecton 3rd until the 3rd
appointed date or appointed day or appointed date or appointed date or
when granted, the application when granted, the application
whichever is later {including any whichever is later (including any
appeal) is appeal) is
determined, determined,
whichever is later whichever is later
35

Page 45



ANNEX B: GUIDE TO TRANSITIONAL PERIOD AND NEW
APPLICANTS

( : ) / \
Has the Jocal No
authority adopted i
N\ powsrs to regulate SEV licence not
8EVs? (Contact -fequirsd
Appointed Days local authority if
uncartain)
1st Appoimted Day \ )
The day on which the SEV regime
comes into force ;n alocal
authority area and the beginning of (e )
i o : A'm,yuu an
the fransttional period eiisting operator? Yes =
: Uidance > ‘guldafor
2nd Appointed Bay {Sea guloanoe ot ~ Seaguidafo
The.day 6 mionths after the 1st "'gzu;"g'm‘gﬁf‘ sxlsting epérelors
appointed day 0 Gﬂl‘lﬂin)
The day 6 months after the 2nd
appointed day and the end of the P b, 5 0
transitional peried No
NB: [f you are uricertain as to what Do you wantto SEV llsance not
dates the appointed days wil fall operale an SEV? required
pleass-contact your local authority.
sl Y
\ ./ Yes
Heve yau
submittadia SEM
appllestion on ar
before the 20
apgeipted day?
Yes
Application
All Application considered once
recaived on or applications
before 2nd recelved on or
appointéd day before 2n
consilered appoined day
fogsther have been
determined
sl Y
[ Grarited ' Granied

SEV licence takes Appeal decision or
effect when reapplyfora
granted licence

SEV licence takes Appeal gecislon or
effect when reapply fora
granted licence -

36

Page 46



EASTBOURNE Mikws

Borough Council & O

——

www.eastbourne.gov.uk

SEX ESTABLISHMENT AND ENCOUNTER POLICY

ADOPTED 9th December 2015

Eastbourne Borough Council
1 Grove Road

Eastbourne

BN21 4TW

Tel:

01323 410000

Email: customerfirst@eastbourne.gov.uk

Page 47



Eastbourne Borough Council
Sex Establishment Policy

Contents

1. Introduction

2. Consultation

3. Definitions

4. Policy Considerations

5. General Policy - Principles to be applied
6 Renewal applications

7. Application Process

8. Renewal of licence

9. Variation of licence

10. Transfer of licence

11. Representations

12. Duration of Licence

13. Appeals

14. Human Rights

15. Review of Policy

Appendix 1 Hearing Process

Appendix 2 Pool of Conditions

Appendix 3 Contacts

Page 48



1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

Introduction

This document relates to applications for sex establishment
licences. Sex establishments fall into one of the following three categories:

. sex cinemas
o sex shops
° sexual entertainment venues

The scheme for the control of sex establishments by way of a licensing regime is
contained in the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982, as amended
by the Policing and Crime Act 2009. The Council has had regard to the Home Office
Sexual Entertainment Venues Guidance for England and Wales (March 2010).

http://www.lacors.gov.uk/lacors/ContentDetails.aspx?id=23464

This Policy sets out the Council’s approach for the benefit of applicants, and
operators. It also aims to guide and re-assure the public and other public authorities,
ensuring transparency and consistency in decision making. When the decision
making powers of the Council are engaged, each application will be considered on its
merits.

The procedure outlines:

J the process for making an application, and
J the process the Council will follow in considering and determining an application
for a sex establishment.

Consultation

Consultation on this Policy took place with:

e One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of
persons carrying, or proposing to carry on, the business of a sex establishment in
the authority. One or more persons who appear to the Authority to represent the
interests of persons who are likely to be affected by, or otherwise have an
interest in the Policy. This includes; Sussex Police, the Fire Authority, Community
Safety, Planning Authority, Town Centre Neighbourhood Panel and Child
Protection

The Licensing Authority will give due weight to the views of those consulted, and
amend the Policy where appropriate. In determining what weight to give particular
representations, the factors to be taken into account will include:

o Who is making the representation (what is their expertise or interest)

. How many other people have expressed the same or similar views

. How far the representations relate to matters the Council should include in its
Policy.

The policy is published via::

Page 49


http://www.ihsti.com/lacors/home.aspx

2.4

2.5

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

http://www.eastbourne.gov.uk/about-the-council/council-policies-plans-and-
strategies/licensing-policy/sex-establishment-and-encounter-policy/

Should you have any comments regarding this Policy, please send them via email or
letter to Customer First at Eastbourne Borough Council

The consultation on this Policy took place from 1t July 2015 until 24" September
2015.

Definitions
The Act

This refers to Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act
1982, as amended by the Policing and Crime Act 2009.

The Policy
This refers to the Eastbourne Sex Establishment and Encounter Policy.
Sex Cinema

A sex cinema is any premises, vessel, vehicle or stall used to a significant degree for
the exhibition of moving pictures however produced, which:

(@) are concerned primarily with the portrayal of, or primarily deal with or relate to

or intending to stimulate or encourage sexual activity, acts of force or restraint

which are associated with sexual activity

(b) are concerned primarily with the portrayal of, or primarily deal with or relate to

genital organs or urinary or excretory functions but does not include a dwelling-

house to which the public is not admitted .

Sex Shop

A sex shop is any premises, vehicle, vessel or stall used for a business which

consists to a significant degree of selling, hiring, exchanging, lending, displaying or

demonstrating:

(a) sex articles

(b)  other things intended for use in connection with or for stimulating or
encouraging:-

(i) sexual activity
(i) acts of force or restraint which are associated with sexual activity.

Sex Articles
A sex article is anything for use in connection with or for stimulating or encouraging

(a) sexual activity
(b) acts of force or restraint which are associated with sexual activity

(c) anything:-

Page 50


http://www.lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk/licensing-and-registrations/sex-establishment-licence/

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

i) containing or embodying matter to be read or looked at or anything intended to be
used, either alone or as one of a set, for the reproduction or manufacture of any
such article; and

ii) to any recording of vision or sound, which

a) is concerned primarily with the portrayal of, or primarily deals with or relates to,
or is intended to stimulate or encourage, sexual activity or acts of force or
restraint which are associated with sexual activity; or

b)

b) is concerned primarily with the portrayal of, or primarily deals with or
relates to, genital organs, or urinary or excretory functions.

Sexual Entertainment Venue

A sexual entertainment venue is any premises where any live performance or any
live display of nudity is of such a nature that, regardless of financial gain, it must
reasonably be assumed to have been provided solely or mainly for the purpose of
sexually stimulating any member of the audience. It includes, but is not limited to,
lap dancing, pole dancing, table dancing, strip tease, live sex shows and similar
activities.

The Organiser

This is any person who is responsible for the organisation or management operation
of the relevant entertainment or the premises.

Display of nudity

This means:

o in the case of a woman: exposure of her breasts, nipples, pubic area, genitals
or anus; and

. in the case of a man: exposure of his pubic area, genitals or anus.

Relevant locality

This is the locality where premises are situated or where the vehicle, vessel or stall is
going to be used as a sex establishment. The locality and the area that this covers
is a matter for the Local Authority to decide at the time it considers an application
for the grant, renewal or transfer of a sex establishment licence.

Permitted hours

These are the hours of activity and operation that have been authorised under a sex
establishment licence.

Appropriate Authority
Eastbourne Borough Council is the ‘Appropriate Authority’ for the purposes of the sex

establishment licensing regime introduced by the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended) and adopted by Council on 23™ February 2011.

5
Page 51



4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

Policy Considerations
Relevant Locality

This Policy applies to the areas covered by Eastbourne Borough Council. Eastbourne
is a thriving seaside town and a spectacular gateway to the South Downs and the
national beauty spot, Beachy Head..

With five miles of beaches, the largest manmade marina in the UK, and over 4,000
acres of South Downs countryside, Eastbourne regularly receives awards from Blue
Flag to Best UK Resort and Most Group-Friendly UK Destination.

Tourism is crucial to this cosmopolitan area and is Eastbourne’s primary industry. It
attracts over 4 million visitors and is worth over £343 million to the local economy
every year with over £5.5 million in conferencing business alone.

With one of the largest quantities of tourist accommodation in the South East,
Eastbourne has approximately 7,500 bed spaces, and as a result the town stages a
busy events programme which includes; international ladies tennis, theatre shows
direct from the West End and an international four day air show, Airbourne, bringing
over 800,000 visitors.

In addition, a Tourism Strategy seeks to secure investment in the town. It develops
new marketing initiatives which will add new audiences for Eastbourne in the future,
targeting 35+ age groups with high spending capability.

The Council’s vision is to achieve balanced, sustainable communities and
neighbourhoods to enable a good quality of life for all. In consultation with its
partners it has developed and adopted a number of strategies, policies and plans
that set out how we mean to achieve this vision.

In devising this Policy, regard has been given to the available

data, findings, shared vision and plans informing Eastbourne’s Sustainable
Community Strategy (the “Strategy”), adopted by the Council and local strategic
partnership.

Strategic Vision
The Strategy has the following vision for the Borough:

. A Borough with greater opportunity and prosperity for everyone, whatever their
background, and the narrowing of economic environmental and health
inequality.

o Safe, strong and cohesive communities, and a shared sense of fairness,
citizenship and social responsibility.

The Council aims to integrate this Policy with the objectives of the Sustainable
Community Strategy and the Core Strategy so that it contributes to achieving the
vision of the Borough. This is considered in the context of:

. the relative size of the borough taken as a whole

6
Page 52



4.10

4.11

4.12

population density and growth trends

ward profiles

borough profile

poor economic and health specific deprivation indices

level of social housing and tenure

areas subjected to regeneration initiatives

locations of: premises attracting vulnerable people such as GP surgeries and

addiction centres

. areas and premises attracting families such as leisure and sport facilities and
play spaces and play path finders, parks and open spaces

. premises attracting young people such as schools, nurseries and other
educational establishments

. our diverse cultural communities

. places of worship

. Cumulative densities of certain types of commercial premises in any one

location

Working with its partners in Health, Education, the Police and the business and
voluntary sectors, the Council will continue to ensure that it reasonably and
proportionately reflects the needs of its local communities through:

J continued meaningful consultation
the promotion of a consistent and fair approach to regulation

J consultation with the Police and other agencies as appropriate, to
establish protocols for effective enforcement

The Council understands that the co-ordination and integration of policies, strategies
and initiatives is important. This policy takes account of, and is supported by, other
Council policies and relevant legislation..

Through partnership working, the Council will seek to secure the proper integration
of its Policy with other; licensing policies, local crime prevention, planning, tourism,
race equality schemes and cultural strategies, and any other plans introduced for the
management of the town centre and the night time economy:

http://www.eastbourne.gov.uk/about-the-council/council-policies-plans-and-

strategies/

Page 53


http://www.lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk/about-the-council/corporate-plans/

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

General Policy

Principles to be applied
Specific mandatory grounds for refusal of a licence are set out in the Act.
A licence cannot be granted:

a) to anyone under 18 years of age

b) to someone who has held a licence that was revoked in the last 12 months
(from the date of revocation) and who was disqualified from holding a licence
for that period.

c) to someone who has been refused a new licence or renewal of licence within the
last 12 months (from the date of making the application)

d) to an individual who is not resident in the United Kingdom or who has not been
resident for six months prior to the making of an application

e) to a company not incorporated in the United Kingdom

Crime and Disorder:

In accordance with Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, the Council is
under a duty to exercise its functions with due regard to the likely effects on crime
and disorder. It aims to do all it can to prevent crime and disorder in its area. The
possible impact of crime and disorder are clearly relevant factors in the consideration
of all applications. In giving “due regard” to these possible implications, Members will
consider all information available and representations made from all objectors, the
applicant and in particular the Sussex Police.

Every application for the grant, renewal or transfer will be considered on its merits,
on a case by case basis.

The Council may also refuse a licence if the applicant is unsuitable to hold a licence
because they have been convicted of an offence or for any other reason. The
determination of the suitability of the applicant is a matter for the local authority to
decide at the time that the application is made.

Each application will be considered on its own merits. The Local Authority will take
into account representations from the applicant, any person objecting and the Chief
Officer of Police. The Council shall normally take into account:

. previous knowledge and experience of the applicant and their managerial
competence

o any evidence of the operation of any existing/previous licence held by the
applicant, including any licence held in any other borough

. any report about the applicant and management of the premises received from
objectors or the Police and any criminal convictions or cautions of the applicant

o that the operator is proposing a management structure which will deliver
compliance with operating conditions, and policies; detaling the training of staff,
welfare of performers and means to protect the public.

. any other relevant reason

With regard to a business for which an application relates that would be considered
to be managed, or carried on for the benefit of a person other than the applicant,.
the determination is a matter for the local authority to. Each application will be
considered on its own merits. The local authority will take into account

8
Page 54



representations from the applicant, any person/organisation objecting and shall
normally take into account:

o comments/observations of the Police and Council personnel, including
compliance with licensing conditions, relevant history (including noise
complaints) together with details of previous convictions/prosecutions
pending.

o the suitability and fitness of an applicant/operator to hold a licence.

5.7 The number of sex establishments or sex establishments of a particular kind in the
relevant locality at the time the application is determined is equal to or exceeds the
number which the local authority consider is appropriate for that locality at that
time.

5.8 The grant or renewal of a licence would be inappropriate having regard to:

i) the character of the relevant locality

ii) the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put; or

iii) the layout, character or condition of the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall in
respect of which the application is made

iv) Where it can be shown that the business would be managed for the benefit
of a third party who would be refused a licence.

5.9 The relevant locality will be determined in accordance with where the
premises are situated or where the vehicle, vessel or stall is going to be used. The
area and extent of the relevant locality is a matter of the local authority to decide at
the time the application is made. Each application will be considered on its own
merits.

5.10 In determining the character of relevant locality and the appropriate number of sex
establishments in that relevant locality, the Local Authority will take into account,
but not limit its determination to:

(a) the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put;

(b) the number of existing sex establishments both in total and also in
respect of each type (i.e. sex cinemas, sex shops an sexual
entertainment venues);

(c) the number of existing premises engaged in and or offering
entertainment]of an adult or sexual nature or entertainment or
associated with an adult or sexual nature (for example tattooing,
piercing etc;)

(d) the proximity of residents to the premises, including any sheltered
housing and accommodation for vulnerable persons;

(e) the proximity of educational establishments to the premises;
(f) the proximity of places of worship to the premises;

(g) access routes to and from schools, play areas, nurseries, children’s
centres or similar premises;
(h)  the proximity to shopping centres;

9
Page 55



6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

7.0

7.1

7.2

(i) the proximity to community facilities/halls and public buildings such as
swimming pools, leisure centres, public parks, youth centres/clubs. This
list is not exhaustive;

() the potential impact of the licensed activity on crime and disorder and
public nuisance;

(k)  the potential cumulative impact of licensed premises in the area taking
into account the days and hours of operation of the activity and the
character of the locality where the premises are situated;

) the nature and concerns of any objections received from
residents/establishments objecting to the licence application;

(m) any evidence of complaints about noise and/or disturbance caused by
the premises;

(n)  current planning permission/planning requirements on the premises;
(o) any current planning policy considerations;
(p) whether there is planned regeneration of the area;

(q) any current licensing permissions related to the premises in relation to
activities, uses and hours;

Renewal Applications

Where a licence was in existence before the introduction of this Policy, this Policy
willbecome a consideration when the licence is due for renewal.

It should be noted that the Council in applying its decision-making discretion may
consider it appropriate to refuse the renewal of the licence even where there has
been no change in the character of the relevant locality or in the use to which any
premises in the locality are put.

If a renewal application is not opposed, it shall be approved under Authority
delegated to relevant officer(s). All contested applications for renewal, as described
in the Act shall be referred to the Licensing Sub-Committee for decision.

The Application Process
Making an application

Any application should be made in writing to Customer First at Eastbourne Borough
Council. Please note that generally, applications may take 8-12 weeks to determine.

Applicants for a licence must complete and return the application form, together
with:

J 2 sets of floor plans, drawn to scale and showing all means of entry and exit,
any parts used in common with any other building and indicating how the
premises lie in relation to the street;

10
Page 56



7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

7.12

J 2 sets of plans showing the existing and front elevation of the premises
depicting all sighage;

J 2 sets of plans (scale 1:500) showing the sex establishment in relation to other
premises within 100 metres;

J 2 sets of plans (scale 1:50) showing the layout of the sex establishment;

J the correct fee as set by the Council’s Licensing Committee

As part of the application process, applicants are required to post a white A3 notice
at the proposed site for 21 days, from the date the application is lodged with the
Council, setting out the application details.

The notice must be posted in a prominent position on the premises for the whole of
that time so that it can be easily read by passers-by. Applicants are also required to
place a public notice in a local newspaper, for example the Eastbourne Gazette or
Eastbourne Herald, at their own expense. The newspaper notice should appear in the
publication within 7 days of the application being lodged.

Authorised Officers from the relevant Authority may choose to inspect the premises.
This includes Council Officers, Sussex Police, and the Fire Authority to ensure that
required technical standards are met. If works are required to bring the premises up
to standard, the applicant will be notified. Licences will not be issued until all
required works are satisfactorily completed.

As part of the established procedure for dealing with applications, the Council’s Noise
Pollution Specialists will be consulted. If there is the possibility of noise nuisance for
example from amplified music, these officers may also carry out an inspection and
recommend noise insulation work. Any requirements they identify must be complied
with at all times any licence is in force.

Notice of all applications shall be given to Council Officers, Sussex Police, the Fire
Authority, ward members and any other relevant person/organisation as deemed
appropriate by the licensing authority.

Applicants are advised that any person who, in connection with an application for the
grant renewal or transfer of a licence, makes a statement which s/he knows to be
false in any material respect, or which s/he does not believe to be true, is guilty of
an offence and liable to summary conviction to a fine not exceeding £20,000.

Any licence approved does not constitute any approval under any other Acts (for
example, the Town and Country Planning Act 1990) or Bye-Laws. The applicant
must ensure that all other necessary consents and approvals are obtained prior to
operation.

The Council will not determine an application for grant of a licence unless the
applicant allows an authorised officer a reasonable opportunity to enter the proposed
sex establishment to make such examination and enquiries as may be necessary to
determine the suitability of the applicant and the sex establishment.

On the grant of a licence, the licence document will have the agreed days and hours
of operation set out, together with any other specific and/or standard conditions
applied. Licence holders must comply with this.

Application forms, sample advertisements and site notices are available via:

http://www.eastbourne.gov.uk/businesses/licences-and-registrations/sex-
establishment-shop-cinema-licence/
11
Page 57



8.0

8.1

8.2

9.0

9.1

9.2

9.3

Renewal of Licences

To continue operating a sex establishment, licence holders must make a renewal
application prior to the expiry of the existing licence.

The Council may not determine an application for renewal of a licence unless the
applicant allows an authorised officer a reasonable opportunity to enter the proposed
sex establishment to make such examination and enquiries as may be necessary to
determine the suitability of the applicant and the sex establishment.

Variation of Licence

The application form, with relevant plans and fee should be sent to the Licensing
Authority. Please note that applications for variation of licence are also subject to the
site and newspaper notice requirements set out statute.

Variation applications relate only to proposed changes to such matters as the hours
and area of the premises covered by the licence. Any changes in Licensee must be
the subject of a transfer application.

All variation applications for sex establishment licences must be referred to the
Council’s Licensing Sub-Committee for decision. Applicants must not operate any
revised or varied arrangements until such an application has been approved and any
revised or varied licence has been issued.

10.0Transfer of Licence

10.1

The Council may not determine an application for transfer of a licence unless the
applicant allows an authorised officer a reasonable opportunity to enter the proposed
sex establishment to make such examination and enquiries as may be necessary to
determine the suitability of the applicant and the sex establishment.

11.0Representations on an Application

11.1

11.2

11.3

11.4

Any person wishing to object to an application must submit a written representation
within the 28 day consultation period specified to the Licensing Authority, setting out
the grounds of objection.

Valid representations must be made within 28 days of the application being
submitted. Representations made before the application is submitted can be taken
into account. The Council also has discretion to consider representations made after
the 28 day consultation period, although this will be assessed on a case by case
basis.

The legislation dictates that, unless a person making representations consents, their
name and address shall not be revealed to the applicant. They may also be
reluctant to appear before a hearing of the Sub-Committee.

However, the grounds of any objection made on the application must be provided to
the applicant prior to the determination of the application. The report to the
Licensing Sub-Committee may have full details of the objections, including any
actions / undertakings proposed by the applicant to address matters raised.

12
Page 58



11.5 Additionally, the applicant and any persons who made representations and who wish
to attend the hearing will have the opportunity to address the Licensing Sub-
committee before the application is determined.

12.0Duration of Licence

12.1 Sex Establishment Licences will normally expire on an annual basis, but can be
issued for a shorter term, if deemed appropriate.

13.0Appeals

13.1 There is no right of appeal:

o against refusal of a licence on the grounds set out in the above, unless an
applicant can prove the appropriate ground of refusal does not apply to them;

o where refusal of a licence is based on the grounds set out in earlier in this
Policy;

o against conditions applied to a licence

13.2 Any appeal to the Magistrates’ Court must be made within 21 days from the date on
which the person is notified of the decision or became aware of the condition.

13.3 Where an appeal is lodged (other than on grounds previously stated) against refusal
to renew or for revocation, the licence remains in force until such time as the appeal
is determined. Where an appeal is lodged against conditions applied to a licence, the
conditions are deemed not to come into force until the determination or
abandonment of the appeal.

14.0Human Rights

14.1 In determining applications, the principles of the Human Rights Act 1998 must be
taken into consideration. The Act acknowledges that local authorities are entitled,
amongst other things, to act where this is in the “general interest”. Should it be
decided to refuse or to grant an application, or to attach conditions, the rights of
appeal that exist through the Magistrates’ Court will ensure that the principles of the
Human Rights Act are adhered to.

14.2 The Human Rights Act 1998 incorporates the European Convention on Human Rights
and makes it unlawful for a local authority to act in a way which is incompatible with
a Convention right.

15.0Policy Review

15.1 This Policy will be reviewed to incorporate statute and guidance as appropriate.

13
Page 59



Appendix 1

Licensing Committee Hearing Procedure Pursuant to the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 and Policing and Crime Act 2009 - Control of
Sex Establishments and Sex Encounter Establishments.

PROCEDURE AT COMMITTEE

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

1.11

The Chair will open the meeting by introducing Members of the Committee and
Officers present. The Chair will then invite other parties present to introduce
themselves and the capacity in which they are attending (e.g. local residents,
business representatives or legal advisor etc). The Chair will then explain the nature
of the decision to be taken, and the procedure to be followed.

Thereafter the Chair will direct the parties to the hearing (the Applicant, Objectors,
the local police or any other public or private bodies who have made an objection or
representation), to address the Committee on their application, objection or
representations. The Chair may direct a party to provide further information or other
evidence that the Chair feels requires expansion or clarification.

The Authorised Officer will provide an outline of the application, objections and
representations received and highlight relevant policy considerations.

Members, Applicants and Interested Parties are then permitted to ask questions of
the Licensing Manager.

The Police, Objectors and other parties will then be heard by the Committee and
may be questioned in turn.

The Applicant will then have an opportunity to set out their application and any
further evidence upon which they propose to rely.

The Chair will direct that parties should limit their oral representations to those
matters which relate to the grounds upon which a licence can be refused and/or
upon such conditions as might reasonably and proportionately be imposed in the
circumstances of the application.

The Chair may also direct that an appropriate time limit be set to allow each
individual an equal opportunity to present their case.

The Chair will invite the Members of the Committee and thereafter other parties to
ask any relevant questions after each of the representations. The Chair will direct
that parties should limit their questions to those matters which engage with the
grounds upon which a licence can be refused and/or upon such conditions as might
reasonably and proportionately be imposed in the circumstances of the application.

The Chair will invite each of the parties to make a very brief closing speech/summing
up if they wish. No new information may be introduced at this stage.

The Chair will invite Members to go into closed session to make their decision. The
Committee will be accompanied by the Council’s Legal Adviser. Any legal advice
given to the Committee will be given in outline to the parties.

14
Page 60



1.12 Members will then return to the open session. The Chair will announce the decision,
giving reasons, and any conditions placed upon the licence (if granted).
Alternatively, the Committee may inform the parties that its decision will be given in
writing and not at the conclusion of the hearing. In such a case the decision will be
notified to all the parties within five working days of the hearing (not including the
date of the hearing).

NOTE

e The Council requires that any evidence supplementary to the original submissions, in
support of or against an application must be received a minimum of 5 working days
before the date on which the matter is to be heard, to ensure that all parties have
sight of the evidence in advance of the hearing.

e The applicant will normally be notified in writing of the decision within 5 working days.

e Applicants and Licence holders have right to appeal against a decision in certain
circumstances, details of which can be obtained from the Licensing Manager.

e The Council is committed to taking decisions in an honest, accountable and
transparent fashion but on occasion may find it necessary to exclude members of the
press and public based upon the legal framework given by the Local Government Act
1972 Schedule 12a and/or local policy. On these occasions decisions based on the
above framework will be given. Generally this authority endeavours to allow all parties
to speak and ask questions of another party present during a Licensing hearing.
However, this decision has to be taken on a case by case basis and in some cases (a
reason will be given) verbal representation and cross examination may not be
permitted.

e The Authority has the right to exclude any parties disrupting this hearing, at its
discretion.

e The Authority reserves the right to amend the hearing procedure without notice.

15
Page 61



Appendix 2

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1982
AS AMENDED BY THE POLICE AND CRIME ACT 2009

Sex Establishment Schedule of Standard Conditions

Display Of Licence

A copy of the Sex Establishment Licence and the standard conditions made by the
authority must be kept exhibited in the public area of the premises.

Age Policy

No person under 18 years of age to enter the premise.

All customers appearing to be under the age of 21 to be required to provide
photographic proof of their age before being allowed access to the shop.

No person under 18 years of age is to be employed in the business of the
establishment.

At all entrances there shall be prominently displayed so as to be visible at all times
to persons approaching the premises a notice prohibiting entry to all persons under
18 years of age.

The Licensee of the premises shall ensure that all persons employed on the premises
are aware of the age restriction on clients and that they exclude or remove from the
premises any person attempting to evade the restriction.

Site Specific Conditions - Sex Shop

A premises licensed as a Sex Shop under the provisions of Schedule III of the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act, 1982, shall be used only for the purpose
of a Sex Shop as defined in Paragraph 4 of the said Schedule 3 and shall not be
used, wholly or in part, for any other purpose during the period the premises are
licensed as a Sex Shop.

The Licensee shall not display outside, near to, or within the premises any
advertising material, sign or pictorial display referring to the licensed premises or the
goods, articles or services provided at the premises, in such a position or manner
that it is visible to any person using adjacent highways, streets, footpaths or
forecourts except any notice displaying the name or trading title of the Licensee, any
Notice indicating the name of the premises, times of opening of the premises for
business, any Notice required by any statute, regulation or bylaw applicable to the
premises or business carried thereon or any notice prescribed by these conditions.
The use of loudspeakers and displays on business vehicles is strictly prohibited.

The licensed premises shall be so arranged by screening or obscuring windows,
doors and other openings so that the interior of the licensed premises and the
displays of articles sold at the premises shall not be visible at any time to persons
outside the building. The external doors shall be fitted with automatic closing devices
which shall be maintained in good working order.

The Licensee shall not supply or permit to be supplied to any person, other than a
person employed to work on the premises, any article of food or drink whether for
consumption on or off the premises.

All refuse produced on the premises and materials, goods or articles discarded for
any reason shall be securely stored within the premises and delivered in sealed
containers to the refuse collection service.

16
Page 62



The Licensee shall make such provision for the reception of goods and articles for
sale, hire, exchange, loan, demonstration or display on the premises so that they are
received directly into the premises and are not subject to storage for any period of
time on any pavement, footpath, forecourt or yard nor in any vessel or vehicle, etc.
where they may be seen by members of the public.

The Licensee or a Responsible Person nominated by him in writing for the purpose
and approved by the Council shall be in charge of and upon the licensed premises
during the whole time they are open to the public. Such written nominations shall be
continuously available for inspection by authorised officers of the Council or the
Police.

The Licensee or their nominated representative shall ensure that no employee or
other person shall seek to obtain custom for the premises by means of personal
solicitation outside or in the vicinity of the premises.

The external appearance of the premises must be as approved by the Council and
neither the interior nor the exterior of the premises shall be altered without the
approval of the Council.

No advertisements, other than advertisements relating to other licensed sex
establishments or relating to goods sold from the premises, shall be displayed in the
premises.

A record shall be kept of all mail order transactions (if any) in such form as agreed
by the Council.

The licence is not transferable by the Licensee other than through the formal
application process to the Licensing Authority.

The Licensee shall immediately notify the Council he/she intends ceasing to carry on
the business.

The Licensee shall inform the Council if he/she is convicted under the Obscene
Publications Act, 1959, the Protection of Children Act, 1978, or the Customs and
Excise Management Act, 1979 or if an order for forfeiture is made under the Obscene
Publications Act, 1959 following the service of a summons on the Licensee. The
Council will take into consideration any such conviction or orders for possible
revocation or non-renewal of the licence.

The Licensee shall not in the conduct of the business employ any person:-

o Whose application for a licence to carry on a sex establishment, or renewal
thereof, has been refused by the Council or any other licensing authority

o Whose licence to carry on the business of a sex establishment has been
revoked by the Council or any other licensing authority;

o The name, address, date of birth and details of any criminal convictions of all
individuals who will have responsibility for the operation or management of
the store in the absence of the licence holder are to be provided to the
Licensing Authority prior to such persons commencing their role at the
premises.

The Licensee shall not, in the conduct of the business, employ any person who has a
criminal conviction or simple caution under:

e The Obscene Publications Act, 1959,

e The Protection of Children Act, 1978, or

e The Customs and Excise Management Act, 1979
No external signage is to be displayed on the premises, except for the company
name, the hours of business and details of the age restriction, without the written
authorisation of the Licensing Authority.
The windows of the premises must be such that there is no view from outside into
the interior of the premises and no window display is to be permitted.
A lobby area is to be installed with double doors so restricting the view into the
premises when patrons are entering and leaving.

17
Page 63



e CCTV is to be installed, operated and maintained to a standard agreed with by
Sussex Police and the Licensing Authority. The system is to include 28 day Imaging
storage and be available for inspection in accordance with the Police’s requirement.

e All goods to be discreetly wrapped before leaving the premises.

¢ No part of the premises is to be used for the showing of recorded videos, DVDs or
other moving pictures.

e Any breach of legislation or failure to comply with the Conditions attached to this
Licence may result in prosecution or in the revocation of the Licence.

Premises where activities include lap dancing, pole dancing, nudity and/or sexual
stimulation - the prevention of crime and disorder

Security Industry Authority Door supervisors:

1) The [either: the licensee or a Responsible Person nominated by him in writing or the

organiser] NOT --- Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) or their authorised
representative will ensure that all personnel carrying out security functions at the
premises shall be licensed by the Security Industry Authority. (SIA)

2) There will at all times be a minimum of 2 SIA door supervisors at the main entrance to

3)

4)

5)

6)

the premises and thereafter to a ratio of 1 SIA Door Supervisor per 100 patrons or part
thereof. There will be a further two SIA door supervisors on each floor whilst that floor
is in operation, deployed as directed.

Additional door supervisors must be provided on the respective floor on a ratio of 1 to
100 on any occasion when the capacity on that floor exceeds 200 customers. The two
door supervisors operating at the entrance to the premises will be excluded from this
calculation.

Records shall be maintained at the premises containing the full name, badge number,
date and hours of employment of every Door Supervisor.

If Registered Door Staff are employed through an agency the name and address of the
agency must be included in the entry referring to the person employed by the agency.

Any such record must be in a form approved by the Licensing Authority. [In the event
that no form is either issued or approved by the Licensing Authority, the management
may draft their own form but this must contain all the information stipulated in this
section].

7) The [either: the licensee or a Responsible Person nominated by him in writing or the

8)

organiser] NOT --- Designated Premises Supervisor or their nominated representative
shall ensure door supervisors display a approved SIA badge

Close Circuit Television (CCTV) and Associated Recording Equipment

CCTV and appropriate recording equipment to be installed, operated and maintained
throughout the premises internally and externally to a standard specification following
consultation with Sussex Police. Such CCTV footage will be stored for a minimum of 28
days, and the management will give full and immediate cooperation and technical
assistance to the Police in the event that CCTV footage is requested for the prevention
and detection of suspected or alleged crime.

18
Page 64



9) The Chief Officer of Police, or his/her representative of the rank of Inspector or above,
must be afforded access to video recordings upon request and be provided with a copy,
which will be returned to the club within a reasonable time.

10) The premises will not open unless and until written confirmation has been supplied
to the Council Licensing Authority by the Police that they are satisfied that the
installation, operation and coverage of the CCTV system meets the required standard.

11) Security arrangements for the dressing rooms in the form of a combination lock
with deadlocking latch and a discreet panic alarm within the dressing rooms, linked to
the club reception, shall be maintained at all times whilst the premises are open. No
member of the audience shall be admitted to this room under any circumstances and a
notice to this effect will be displayed on the door.

Drugs

12) The management and premises will have an absolute zero tolerance policy towards
drugs and drug misuse. Any illegal drugs seized will be stored in a secure ‘drugs box’,
and periodically the management will request the Police to come and remove all drugs
in the ‘drugs box’ for destruction.

13) In the event that a person is found on the premises actively taking or dealing in
drugs, that person will be detained and the Police will be called to the premises.

14) The management will permit the Police to use an ‘ION Track’ drugs detector or other
similar device inside the premises to detect the illegal use of drugs and will sign the
Police consent form.

Public Safety

15) Capacity limits. The number of persons on the premises shall not exceed that as
stated by the Fire Officer. Such a figure will include staff and performers.

16) When the [either: the licensee or a Responsible Person nhominated by him in writing
or the organiser] NOT --- DPS is not on site, an appropriately authorised, trained and
nominated individual shall assume management and control of the site.

17) Crime prevention and security measures shall be instigated throughout the premises
following consultation with Sussex Police Crime Prevention Design Advisor or their
nominated representative, as reasonably required.

18) The management of the premises will meet with the Police to discuss the safe and
proper management of the premises on a minimum three monthly basis, unless the
Police confirm in any one quarter that such a meeting is not necessary.

19) The premises will continue to be a member of NIGHT WATCH or any similar
organisation set up to replace this.

20) Shatterproof drinking receptacles will be used throughout the site where practicable.
21) No persons under 18 will be admitted to the premises.
22) No under 18s events will be hosted anywhere on the premises at any time.

23) Whilst striptease entertainment is taking place, no customer under 18 shall be on
the premises and clear notices shall be displayed at the entrance to the premises in a
19
Page 65



prominent position so that it can easily be read by persons entering the premises in the
following terms:

20
Page 66



NO PERSONS UNDER 18 TO BE ADMITTED
ENTERTAINMENT WITHIN THESE PREMISES INVOLVES
A FORM OF NUDITY

Special Conditions

24) The only form of entertainment which is approved and may be provided at the
premises is striptease entertainment in the form of pole dancing by club dancers only,
in the following format:

25) Fully nudity is not permitted. The dancer/performers should at all times wear a G-
string or similar piece of clothing which is not transparent on the appropriate part of the
body in order to cover the groin/genital area.

26) The approved striptease/pole dance entertainment shall be given only by the
performers/entertainers and no audience participation shall be permitted.

27) There shall be no physical contact between the customer and the dancer before,
during or after the performance when the performance is complete. All monetary
transactions will take place at the reception/entrance area and shall be lieu of a ticket,
covering the cost of the performance of pole dancing only. Notices outlining this shall be
clearly displayed at every table and be on display at the entrance of the premises and in
each bar area.

28) Dancers shall only perform within a designated area to seated customers. No booth
seating or performances shall be permitted at any time. All areas will have adequate
lighting to ensure the safety of the dancer and to ensure that both the
member/guest/audience and the performer are adhering to the Club rules at all times.

29) There shall be no simulated sex acts or use of props, save for the pole, as part of the
performance.

30) There shall be no physical contact between dancers whilst performing.

31) There will be a minimum distance of one metre between the dancer and the seated
customers at all times.

32) Dancers may not give out any personal information, including telephone numbers,
email addresses or other contact details to audience members. Dancers may not accept
any telephone number, address, business card or any other information from any
customer.

33) All dancers/performers will be aged over 18 years of age and legally entitled to work
in the UK before they perform at the Club. Copies of all dancers’ files will be made
available to Licensing Authority for inspection upon request.

34) At no time will members or their guests be permitted into the performers changing
room(s).

35) Members and their guests may not at any time take photographs, film, video or
mobile phone photographs or footage of performers. This will be an express written
condition of membership.

21
Page 67



36) Both floors will be dedicated to table and/or pole dancing on design. The premises
will not permit one floor to be used for table and/or pole dancing or other forms of adult
entertainment, whilst permitting the other floor to be used for other types of function
(whether open to the public or via private booking) without first receiving prior written
confirmation and approval for the specific event from the Police and the Council
Licensing Department.

37) There shall be no mixed gender performance at any time.

38) Outside of premises advertising. The Designated Premises Supervisor or their
nominated representative will ensure that there is no display outside of the premises of
photographs or other images that indicate or suggest that pole dancing striptease or
similar entertainment takes place on the premises. No photographs or other images or
words of a sexually explicit nature shall be displayed on the outside of the premises.

39) Website. Any promotional website for the premises will not display photographs or
other images of topless or nude performers, or show photographs or other images that
may be reasonably construed as sexually explicit. The website will include clear
statements as to the 48 hour prior membership application requirement and the over 18
age requirement for members and guests.

40) Promotional literature. Any promotional literature circulated outside of the premises
will not display photographs or other images of topless or nude performers, or show
photographs or other images or words that may reasonably be construed as offensive.
All promotional literature will include clear statements as to the 48 hour prior
membership requirement and the over 18 age requirements for members and guests.

Conditions
G1l. Only activities to which the Council has given its consent shall take place.

G2. The approved activities shall take place only in areas designated by the Council and
the approved access to the dressing room(s) shall be maintained whilst striptease
entertainment is taking place and immediately thereafter.

Note The Council will not permit striptease to be in a location where the
performance can be seen from the street.

G3. The striptease entertainment shall be given only by the performers/entertainers and
the audience shall not be permitted to participate.

G4. Whilst striptease entertainment is taking place no person under the age of 18 shall
be on the premises. A clear notice shall be displayed at each entrance to the
premises in a prominent position so that it can be easily read by persons entering
the premises with the words:

NO PERSON UNDER 18 WILL BE ADMITTED

G5. There shall be no physical contact between the customer and performer before,
during or after the performance other than the placing of notes by the customer in a
garter worn by the performer for that purpose.

G6. Notices outlining this shall be clearly displayed at every table, be on display at the
entrance of the premises and at each bar area.

22
Page 68



G7.

G8.

GO.

G10.

The performers shall at all times wear at least a G-string which shall not be removed
as part of the performance and which shall at all times cover the genitalia.

Entertainment under this consent may be provided solely by dancers performing on
the stage or to customers seated at a table in the approved part of the premises.

CCTV shall be installed to cover all the areas where dancing will take place.
Whilst dancing takes place, registered door supervisors shall be employed in that

part of the premises used for dancing. The number of registered door supervisors
employed shall be stipulated by the Council as part of the conditions of consent.

23
Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



X . APPaOIX 3
EASTBOURNE

www.eastbourne

Application for * ReN ewAL

OF A SEX ESTABLISHMENT LICENCE
* (insert GRANT/RENEWAL/VARIATION/TRANSFER)

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you
are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure
that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if
necessary.

Please return this form to: Eastbourne Borough Council, 1 Grove Road, Eastbourne, BN21
4TW

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I/We - FogTe DEVE(oPHENTS iy
(insert name/s of applicant/s - please read guidance note 1)

apply for the Grant/Renewal/Variation/Transfer* of a Sex Establishment Licence
for the premises described in Part 1 below (the premises) in accordance with
schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (*delete

as necessary)

Part 1 - Premises Details (Please read guidance note 2)
Postal address (including trading name, postcode and telep{mne number of premises)
Ly x z FolriAaLeg Ko A-S SAcom PevE
Secomd F"LQOZ

24 -2z PEvEMSTy TR03D
CEasTRoue~E Nl IHT,

The premises are a (please tick one):

| building ©~ vehicle © stall ©
Will the sex establishment occupy the whole premises? yes O no ©
Are the premises currently in use as a sex establishment? yes Ono ©

Part 2 - Applicant Details

Please state whether you are applying for a licence as (Please tick one)

a) an individual or individuals * : o please complete sections A, C & D
b) a person other than an individual *
i. as a limited company o ‘/ptease complete sections B, C&D
ii. as a partnership o please complete sections B, C& D

iii. as an unincorporated association or o please complete sections B, C& D

Page 71




b

iv. other (for example a statutory o Please complete sections B, C &D
corporation)

A. Individual Appllicant Details (Please read guidance note 3)

Mr © Mrs O | Miss © Ms © Other Title
Surname First names
Date of birth

Current postal address
including post code

Telephone number (if any)

Email address (opticnal)

Mr O Mrs © Miss ©O Ms O Other Title
Surname ‘ First names
Date of birth

Current postal address
including postcode

Telephone number (if any)

Email address (optional)

(Continue on separate page if necessary)

B. Other Applicants

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where
appropriate please give any registered number.

Name 7 Folvre DEusiopHewrrs kx>
postcode
Registered number 012255%%

Description of applicant b
(e.g. partnership, kimived CombPany
company, etc.)

Telephone number (if any)

Email address (optional)

Page 72




.

C. Description of Trading Activity

The premises will trade as:

a sex cinema © a sex shop © a sexual entertainment venue ©

The premises will trade on the following days and between the following times:

Monday |Tuesday | Wednesday | Thursday |Friday Saturday |Sunday
From From From From From From From
217 5 ‘0o R0 D 1LY LDo 22~00 29 - 0O 29.:00 |2d»do
To To To To To To To

O o0 | O 00 | O~ 0O | oL 00 | O~ 00 | B4 00 | O&: OO

Provide details of the goods to be offered for sale, films to be shown or nature o
the entertainment to be provided

pé.?,ﬁf)QM”JCf 7Y S SV NS )mk:.u(‘,— 2_7 Fare ~d Evuu_f
Dacers ((mor HMixE>)

How will you prevent the interior of the premises being visible to passers by?

THE SAcomd l:.-_oolz OF THes< PQTVIISTS 1S AoT O\/@E/u:ow)
B A oTHTE BuiDimG - Trysr At Ao wWinDows on)
THS Frocl .

Provide details of any advertisements or displays to be exhibited, including sizes

ExTEluAr. Sieuage Wil Bx EFogimomsd ALovr T+ En@atXg :
Do,

Pagﬁ 73




“

D. Licensing History

Has any person or the corporate or unincorporated body referred to in this
application:-

Been disqualified from holding a licence for a sex establishment? No
Been refused the grant / renewal / transfer of a licence for a sex
establishment? No
Been convicted of a criminal offence which is not spent? Mo
Been the holder of a sex establishment licence when that licence has NO

been revoked?
If 'Yes’ to any of the above please provide details: (continue on a separate sheet

if required)

Date of Conviction Court Nature of Offence Sentence

Page 74




Part 3 - Declaration

I/We:(Please tick)

®*  Enclose the fee (Please make cheques payable to Eastbourne Borough Council) '/o

*  Understand that the information given may be used in conjunction with other _» ©
authorities for the prevention and detection of fraud, and will be held on
computer, subject to the Data Protection Act 1998.

®*  Confirm that the informati
my/our knowledge and be

on supplied in this application is true to the best of -
lief.

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE NOT EXCEEDING LEVEL 5
ON THE STANDARD SCALE, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION

WITH THIS APPLICATION

Signatures (Please read guidance note 4)

Signature of applicant/s or applicant/s’ solicitor or other duly authorised agent. If signing

on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Signature/s

o

Date

OB ki~ ]

Capacity ¢

CTNSING- ACENT

Contact Details (Please read

guidance note 5)

Contact name

Contact postal address
including post code

Telephone number (if any)

Email address (optional)

_

All applicants are required to send with the application:

- 2 plans showing the area to be licensed;
- Complete all statutory declarations on the form.

Page 75




LICENSING ACT 2003

7 IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE
STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE WHO MAKE A FALSE
STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE Of ANY AMOUNT.

IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 248 OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A PERSON TO WORK
WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED
FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT
WITHOUT LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LABLETO A
CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION, ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006
AND, PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE SAME ACT WilL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE WHERE
THEY DO SO IN THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE EMPLOYEE
IS DISQUALIFIED.

In acknowledgement of S. 158 of the Act as detailed above:

WE, F.FORTE DEVELOPMENTS Ltd, HEREBY AUTHORISE GRAHAM DOVE, OUR APPOINTED LICENSING
AGENT, TO ACT ON OUR BEHALF.

SIGNED

(for and on behalf of F.Forte Developments Ltd - Holder of Premises Licence)

Page 76




INARNIVAD e o
EASTBOURNE lll‘\&

Borough Council -

www.eastbourne.goviuk

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1982,
PART 2 AS AMENDED BY SECTION 27 OF THE POLICING AND
CRIME ACT 2009

LICENCE FOR A SEX ESTABLISHMENT

Eastbourne Borough Council being the Licensing Authority under the
above Act hereby grants this Licence to

F. Forte Developments Ltd

28t Lronaros ROBASPE N on Soa; Fast-Sussey TS
In respect of the premises known as

Lux
2a - 2b Pevensey Road, Eastbourne, East Sussex BN21 3HJ

for the purposes of a SEX ESTABLISHMENT VENUE, AS DEFINED IN
SCHEDULE 3 of the said Act, subject to the conditions shown in Schedule
1 of this licence.

This Licence shall have effect from 6" December 2018 until the 5"
December 2019

Dated this 29" November 2018

Signed:

(Danielle Ball, Specialist Advisor)
For Eastbourne Borough Council

Address for all other communications regarding this licence:

Licensing

1 Grove Road
Eastbourne
East Sussex
BN21 4TW

Page 77



EASTBOURNE

www.eastbourne.gov.uk

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1982,
PART 2 AS AMENDED BY SECTION 27 OF THE POLICING AND
CRIME ACT 2009

Schedule 1 to the licence for Lux, 2a - 2b Pevensey Road, Eastbourne,
East Sussex BN21 3H]

Variation to conditions made 26 September 2019

Conditions

Customers Code of Conduct

1. We appreciate the cooperation of customers by dressing smartly.
2. The premises are covered by digital CCTV in all areas

3. No person under the age of 18 will be admitted as stipulated in the
conditions shown on the Premises Licence 050994.

4. Members and their guests may not at any time take photographs,
film, video or mobile phone photographs or footage of performers.
This will be an express written condition of membership.

5. Table service is provided in order that customers may remain
seated if preferred.

6. Striptease entertainment shall be given only by the
performers/entertainers. None shall be permitted by audience or
staff members working or contracted to work at the premises whilst
in operation.

7. The only form of entertainment which is approved and may be
provided at the premises is striptease entertainment in the form of
pole dancing.

8. There shall be no physical contact between the customer and the
dancer before, during or after the performance when the
performance is complete. All monetary transactions will take place
at the reception/entrance area and shall be lieu of a ticket, covering
the cost of the performance of pole dancing only. Notices outlining
this shall be clearly displayed at every table and be on display at
the entrance of the premises and in each bar area.

9. Propositioning, shouting or profane language is not permitted.

Page 78



EASTBOURNE

Borough Council

www.eastbourne gov.uk

10. The management reserves the right of admission and removal.

11.The management operates a zero-tolerance policy to the supply of
drugs and the use of drugs as stipulated in the conditions shown on
the Premises Licence 050994.

12. Members shall not throw, or encourage others to throw money at,
or otherwise give gratuities to, performers.

13. There shall be no deliberate physical contact between the customer
and the dancer, with the exception of shaking hands and customers
and/or leading a customer by the hand from a seated area to a
booth for a private dance.

14. Customers must remain fully clothed at all times.
15. Customers leaving the premises must do so quietly.

16. When the DPS is not on site, there will be a control document held
and maintained on site, which will state who is in effective control
and management of the premises in the absence of the DPS. Other
persons in control and management of the premises in the absence
of the DPS will ideally be personal licence holders and will be fully
competent in all licensing matters, health and safety and emergency
evacuation measures.

17.The premises will report all instances of crime and disorder to the
Police

18. Dancers shall only perform on the stage area or at a designated
place to seated customers. All booths will have adequate lighting to
ensure the safety of the dancer and to ensure that both the member
/guest/audience and the performer are adhering to the club rules at
all times. An SIA door supervisor will have a full and unrestricted
view of any dancer performing in a booth at all times.

19. The private booths will be designed in such a way that there can be
no curtain or other visual barrier that can be pulled across the
entrance, thus concealing activities inside the booth area. The
booths will be designed in such a way that the door supervisors and
Booth CCTV operator staff can see into the booths to ensure the
safety of the dancers performing inside and to ensure that the club
rules are being strictly adhered to at all times.

20. The role of Booth CCTV operator will be a member of staff
designated exclusively for that purpose whilst the performances are
taking place. The operator should monitor the booths at all times
when in use. A record will be maintained with details of the
nominated Booth operators at any given time.

Page 79



EASTBOURNE 11\-_1

Borough Council

www.eastbourne.gov.uk

21. All dancers will be escorted from the premises at the end of each

evening to their transport (e.g. taxis) to ensure their personal safety
and security.

22. Customers purchasing a private dance must do so in person. If

payment is made using debit/credit card contactless, ID must be
shown at the point of sale to prove they are the named person on
that debit/credit card.

Definitions:

Pole Dancing - private dances will not require the placement of a
physical pole.

No Touching - performers will be permitted to accept tokens
handed to them and they will be permitted to lead the customer to
the private area for a dance, thus involving some minimum contact.

Performers Code of Conduct

. All dancers/performers will be aged over 18 years of age and legally

entitled to work in the UK before they perform at the Club. Copies
of all dancers’ files will be made available to Licensing Authority for
inspection upon request.

Striptease performers are to dress at the conclusion of each
performance and are to remain fully clothed whilst acting in the
capacity of hostess

There shall be no physical contact between the customer and the
dancer before, during or after the performance when the
performance is complete. All monetary transactions will take place
at the reception/entrance area and shall be lieu of a ticket, covering
the cost of the performance of pole dancing only. Notices outlining
this shall be clearly displayed at every table and be on display at
the entrance of the premises and in each bar area.

Customers must remain fully clothed at all times. Performers shall
not remove customer clothing at any time.

The area proposed for striptease shall be sited where the
performance is not visible from the street.

Private striptease provided in private designated dance areas
located on the premises shall be to customers seated on fixed
seating within this area only.

Page 80



EASTBOURNE i

v
| Rt
Borough Council v !_ i

www.eastbourne gov.uk

7. Striptease shall only be performed in those areas of the premises
which are advised by the management.

8. There shall be no tableside striptease performances.

9. Striptease and lap dancing performers are to remain standing
during a performance of striptease.

10. Performers engaged in striptease or booth private dancing shall
remain standing during their performance.

11. The changing room in the premises shall only be accessed by
striptease performers during trading hours.

12. When performances are taking place, no performer shall dance with
or towards another performer, and shall make no physical contact
with another partner.

13. The management operates a zero tolerance policy to the supply or
use of drugs and to the consumption of alcohol by performers during
trading hours.

14. Performers shall not encourage customers to throw money at or
otherwise to give gratuities.

15. The Code of Conduct for striptease performers shall be lodged with
the Authority responsible for licensing (Eastbourne Borough
Council). All performers shall sign the Code of Conduct as agreed by
Sussex Police in their proper name acknowledging that they have
read and understood, and are prepared to abide by the said Code of
Conduct, and a copy so signed be retained by the DPS and shall be
readily available for inspection by the Police and all authorised
persons upon reasonable request.

16. There shall be no simulated sexual acts between performers of
striptease.

17. Striptease performances shall only be given by employed
performers and no member of the public or staff shall be permitted
to participate in the performances in any way or at any time.

18.The licensee shall provide a suitable dressing room/area where
performers may change and shall provide within the room/area a
wash hand basin with a hot and cold water supply. Security
arrangements for the dressing rooms in the form of a combination
lock with deadlocking latch and a discreet panic alarm within the
dressing rooms, linked to the club reception, shall be maintained at
all times whilst the premises are open. No member of the audience
shall be admitted to this room under any circumstances and a notice
to this effect will be displayed on the door.

19. There shall be no striptease performances to customers at the bar
or standing customers.

Page 81



EASTBOURNE

Borough Council

www eastbourne goviuk

20. Dancers shall only perform on the designated stage area or a
designated booth area table to seated customers.

21.Dancers may not give out any personal information, including
telephone numbers, email addresses or other contact details to
audience members. Dancers may not accept any telephone number,
address, business card or any other information from any customer.

22. Striptease performers are to re-dress at the conclusion of a
performance and are to remain fully clothed whilst acting in the
capacity of host or hostess but may work solely behind the bar
topless.

23. All booths will have adequate lighting to ensure the safety of
dancers and to ensure that members/guests and performers are
adhering to the Club rules at all times.

24. At all times when public entertainment is by way of striptease, pole
dancing or topless persons are serving at the bar, there shall be a
minimum of three Security Industry Authority (SIA) registered door
supervisors employed on the premises during striptease
performance hours. The security staff / DPS will also regularly
monitor the public toilets and changing room/area.

25. All dancers/performers will be aged over 18 years of age and legally
entitled to work in the UK before they perform at the premises.
Copies of all dancers’ files will be made available to the Licensing
Authority for inspection upon request.

Definitions

e Pole Dancing - private dances will not require the placement of a
physical pole.

e No Touching - performers will be permitted to accept tokens
handed to them and they will be permitted to lead the customer to
the private area for a dance, thus involving some minimum contact.

Page 82



AoPaad\n &
©

Soroptimist
INnternational

EFastbourne & District

4 December 2019

The Licensing Team

Lewes District and Eastbourne Borough Councils
1 Grove Road

Eastbourne

East Sussex

BN21 4TW

The Licensing Team

Representation against the grant of an SEV renewal at the Embassy night
club in Pevensey Road

It was with much disappointment and concern that we read recently that
Eastbourne Borough Council has given approval to open a strip club above the
Embassy nightclub in Pevensey Road.

We understand the owner, Gino Forte, asked for a number of conditions to be
changed to the terms of his original licence for the club, including the removal
of rules preventing full nudity and dancers from performing within a metre of
customers. This would allow for full nudity and a “no touching rule”. Despite
some concerns being raised by committee members, it was agreed to approve
the variation of licence conditions as requested by the applicant.

As Soroptimists, we aim to help transform the lives and status of women and
girls by advocating for equity and equality and creating safe and healthy
environments. How does a strip club in the centre of Eastbourne help us
achieve our goals?

Ventures like the proposed strip club do little to promote the town as a desirable

Soroptimist International Great Britain and Ireland Women inspifing action,
(SIGBI) Limited, Company Number 07058666 transform"ng ”VES ‘
Page 83



place to live, work and visit. Approval of such premises by the council is a
totally unacceptable development in the 21 century in a town seeking
regeneration and focuses on financial gain rather than the well-being of
residents of our town.

It also goes against Eastbourne Borough Council’s Equality and Fairness
Policy that states that “All individuals living within our boundaries should have
the opportunity to achieve their full potential and all those who live, work and
visit our areas should feel welcome, valued, safe, respected and included.” How
“valued, safe and respected” do performers in a strip club feel?

Yours sincerely.

President Elect

Eastbourne and District Soroptimists

ERESeasese g
Soroptimist International Great Britain and Ireland Women inspiring action,
(SIGBI) Limited, Company Number 07058666 transforming ’ives

Page 84



STRONGER together

/‘\\
%

Lewes District Council Working in partnership with Eastbourne

EASTBOURNE i

|
\

-3
la

Equality and Fairness Analysis
Report assessing the impact of proposed changes and decisions

Report or policy title & date of meeting | Licensing Sub Committee

(Cabinet / Board report or policy title) 231 January 2020

Report author (Cabinet / Board report or Danielle Ball

policy author) Danielle.Ball@Lewes-Eastbourne.gov.uk
Responsible Head of Service Linda Farley

Responsible Director/Assistant Tim Whelan

Director

Decision Makers Licensing Sub Committee

Date EaFA and report sent to the January 2020

Equalities Email

This form is used to demonstrate any potential impacts on groups protected under the
Equality Act, and any other identified group who may be affected. It should be used to
assess the impact of new projects, services, initiatives and changes in the way we
deliver services that will affect staff, residents and service users, and help decision
makers to understand any anticipated impacts.

Where this report relates to Council, Cabinet, Scrutiny or Board Reports, this form
must be completed and a first draft submitted to EqualitiesEmail@lewes-
eastbourne.gov.uk at least 10 days before the deadline for draft Cabinet/ relevant
meeting reports. This allows us time to process your analysis, seek feedback from our
EaF Groups and work with you to make any necessary improvements.

We have various engagement groups who can review and provide feedback on your
analysis. Contact the Equality team if you would like to engage with these groups
ahead of completing your analysis.

Page 85


mailto:Danielle.Ball@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:EqualitiesEmail@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
mailto:EqualitiesEmail@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk

The Public Sector Equality Duty

The Council and its companies must, in the exercise of our functions and in our
decision making, have due regard to the need to:

1. Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct
prohibited under the Act;

2. Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a characteristic and
those who do not share it;

3. Foster good relations between people who share a characteristic and those who
do not share it.

The second aim (advancing equality of opportunity) involves, in particular, having due
regard to the need to:
¢ Remove or minimise disadvantages experienced by people because of their
protected characteristics.
o Take steps to meet the needs of people with certain protected characteristics
where these are different from the needs of other people.

e Encourage people with certain protected characteristics to participate in public life
or in other activities where their participation is disproportionately low.

It describes the third aim (fostering good relations) as tackling prejudice and promoting
understanding between people who share protected characteristics and those who do
not.

It explains that compliance with the general equality duty may involve treating some
people more favourably than others, as long as this is within the law.

By thoroughly assessing what we do against the general duty we are able to make
better decisions, leading to better outcomes for people who work for us and for people
who access our services and facilities.

An Equality and Fairness Analysis should be carried out when
e developing or reviewing strategies, plans, policies and procedures;
e proposing changes to the services delivered or the way these are delivered
e proposing new services, functions, projects or initiatives.

Page 86



Assessing the impact of the options you are considering

In your answers to the questions in this analysis, please spell out any positive or
negative impacts relating to the three general duties which are to:

1. Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation

2. Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a characteristic and
those who do not share it;

3. Foster good relations between people who share a characteristic and those who do
not share it.

You need to think about the protected characteristics below as defined in the Equality
Act 2010

e Age

e Disability

e Gender reassignment

e Marriage and civil partnership
e Pregnancy and maternity

¢ Race and ethnicity

¢ Religion, belief and culture

e Sex

e Sexual orientation

The Council’'s Equality and Fairness Policy states that ‘we also recognise that socio-
economic status can be a significant barrier to equality of opportunity’.

Information on key demographic data and an Area Profile covering Equalities can be
found on the East Sussex in Figures' website.

Question 1)
What is your proposal and what will change as a result?
Please give an overview of your proposals. What decisions are you seeking?

The Council is responsible for considering representations against the application to
renew a Sexual Entertainment Venue (SEV) Licences. An application has been received
by Eastbourne Borough Council the ‘Appropriate Authority’, to renew the Sexual
Entertainment Venue Licence.

Sexual Entertainment Venue is defined as any premises at which relevant entertainment
is provided before a live audience for the financial gain of the organiser or the
entertainer.

Relevant Entertainment means: any live performance or any live display of nudity which
is of such a nature that, ignoring financial gain, it must be reasonable to be assumed to
be provided solely or principally for the purpose of sexually stimulating any member of
the audience (whether by verbal or other means.)

3

Page 87



http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/section/149
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/section/149
https://www.councilhub.net/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=261979
https://www.councilhub.net/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=261979

g8 abed

Question 2)

a. Who will be affected by the changes and how? Thinking about
groups protected under the Equality Act, what impact do you
anticipate for these groups? Explain your answer on the next page

Positive Negative Neutral

What will be the impact? Age X
Consider who the policy/ et
decision is intending to benefit | Disability X
and what the expected .
outcomes are. Assess each Gender reassignment X
characteristic and indicate what . . .
impact you anticipate for each Marriage and civil partnership X
group.

Maternity and pregnancy X

Race X

Religion or beliefs X

Sex X

Sexual orientation X
Which parts of the Public 1. Eliminate discrimination, harassment and X
Sector Equality Duty are most | victimisation
relevant to the policy?

2. Advance equality of opportunity X

3. Foster good relations X




Use this space to explain your answer to 2) a. and expand on either the
positive or negative impact you have identified for each group.

Religion or belief

It is acknowledged that such establishments may contravene some religious or held
beliefs, although it's possible that people may disagree with SEVs in principle, whether
connected to a religion or not. The council should, however, give consideration to
whether the premises is in close proximity to religious buildings as well as its location
overall.

Sex

Although the establishment may have both male and female employees as well as
clientele, there is concern around such establishments perpetuating gender stereotypes
and working against the progress to advance equality within the protected characteristic
of sex.

There is scope to perceive the licencing of such an establishment as condoning the
objectification of women, rather than working to eradicate it, and there is risk associated
to acting in a manner unaligned to the council’s published Equality Policy.

The council has received a submission from Eastbourne & District Soroptimists who
oppose the renewal, stating:

“As Soroptimists, we aim to help transform the lives and status of women and girls by

advocating for equity and equality and creating safe and healthy environments. How
does a strip club in the centre of Eastbourne help us achieve our goals?”

Public Sector Equality Duty aims

It is unlikely that licensing of the establishment will go any way towards meeting the
PSED aims, being to:

¢ Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation
¢ Advance equality of opportunity
e Foster good relations between people who share a characteristic and those who

do not share it.

Although it should be noted that women ought to have the opportunity to take up lawful
employment as they wish, this should be weighed against the potential harm generated
not only to the advancement of equality for women, but the council’s standing as a
progressive authority which advocates equality and fairness as a cornerstone in all that it
does.

The Equality and Human Rights Commission explains that the Equality Act:

Page 89




“.Describes fostering good relations as tackling prejudice and promoting understanding
between people from different groups. It states that compliance with the duty may involve
treating some people more favourably than others.”

The Women and Equalities Committee spoke to Karon Monaghan QC, who stated that
such venues:

“Have an impact on the wider community because they promote the idea that sexual
objectification of women and sexual harassment commonly in those environments is
lawful and acceptable.” Ms Monaghan continued: “How are we doing that in the 21st
century? We are not going to get rid of sexual violence if we mandate the sexual
objectification of women in licensed venues.”

Despite the lawful status of Sexual Entertainment Venues, the committee should be
minded to weigh up its licensing capacity with the potentially adverse impact on the
protected characteristic of sex, principally women and girls in this context.

b. What mitigations have you identified for each negatively impacted group? If
you cannot identify any please explain e.g. a replacement service does not
exist/ there is no resource. (There is a space for action planning at the end
of this document)

Consider any additional steps the Council could take to enhance (where positive or neutral) or
mitigate any negative impacts. Mitigations may include the expansion of one service to cover the
restriction of another/ ensuring promotional material is designed with target audience in mind /
etc

Although the council in its function as a licencing committee works within current
legislation and regulations, note should be taken of what safeguards and checks would
be in place. The Women and Equalities Committee report on Sexual Harassment of
Women and Girls in Public Places (2018) produced a recommendation that:

Local authorities should consult with local stakeholders including sexual violence
specialists and women’s groups to conduct a gender equality impact assessment before
setting their policy on sexual entertainment venues and when considering licence
applications and renewals. They should consider adopting stringent zero tolerance
conditions for any existing sexual entertainment venues. These conditions should make it
clear that they will withdraw licenses following evidence of harm to women in and around
sexual entertainment venues and following evidence of any failure to follow conditions
designed to keep women safe within venues.3

Question 3)

What information have you used to assess the above anticipated impacts on
different groups?

Have you conducted any consultation or carried out any research? Use this space to explain any

1 Meeting the Equality Duty in Policy & Decision Making — The Equality & Human Rights Commission

2 Sexual Harassment of Women and Girls in Public Places Report (2018) — House of Commons Women
and Equalities Committee

3 Sexual Harassment of Women and Girls in Public Places Report (2018) — House of Commons Women
and Equalities Committee

6

Page 90




data (internal and external), academic research, theories, models you have taken into account.

The Council has an external Equalities Stakeholder Group who receive and comment on EaFAs.
If you attended the group please outline any comments or feedback. (There is a section to follow
where you can record comments from the group).

e The Equality and Human Rights Commission PSED Guidance

e The Women and Equalities Committee report on Sexual Harassment of Women
and Girls in Public Places (2018)

e Eastbourne Borough Council Equality and Fairness Policy

o Eastbourne & District Soroptimist submission, December 2019

Next steps: Send your first draft to EqualitiesEmail@lewes-eastbourne.qov.uk 10
days ahead of the Cabinet report deadline. Once complete (allowing for edits) it will be
forwarded to members of the Equality and Fairness Planning (internal) Group and
Stakeholder Group (external) for their comments. They will give any feedback or
suggest amendments directly to you as the report author within 5 working days.
Confidential reports will be sent to the internal Planning Group only.

If you receive any comments or suggestions from a member of the Stakeholder Group
please reply by email with: ‘Thank you for your comments. We will take these into
consideration and you will receive feedback at the next meeting of the Equality and
Fairness Stakeholder Group’.

Question 5)

a. Set out below any comments from members of the EaF Planning or
Stakeholder Groups.

None received at the time of publication.

b. Response to feedback. Describe any changes you have made to your policy /
proposals as a result of the feedback. If you are not proposing changes in response to
any of the feedback, please explain why.

Record any actions in the table at the end of this document.

Page 91



mailto:EqualitiesEmail@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk

Executive Summary

This is for you to paste into your Council / Cabinet / Committee / Member Board report.
Keep this to 2—3 paragraphs only and incorporate any points raised by members of the
EaF Planning and/ or Stakeholder Group and including actions.

Pate this summary in your report under the heading Implications for Equality and
Fairness.

An Equality analysis has been undertaken on these proposals. This has concluded that;

Although the establishment may have both male and female employees as well as
clientele, there is concern around such establishments perpetuating gender stereotypes
and working against the progress to advance equality within the protected characteristic
of sex.

Despite the lawful status of Sexual Entertainment Venues, the committee should be
minded to weigh up its licensing capacity with the potentially adverse impact on the
protected characteristic of sex, principally women and girls in this context.

Page 92




6 abed

Action Planning

Issue identified Action to be completed Lead Officer Required Resources Target Measure of Success

Date

Approval

| confirm | have approved this Analysis and will review the action
plan to ensure it is completed within the dates identified

To be signed and dated by Head of Service

| confirm that | have received this Analysis and approved it

To be signed and dated by Director/Assistant Director

Please now send this report to EqualitiesEmail@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk and to the Cabinet Officer / Company Secretary

with your final report.



mailto:EqualitiesEmail@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the meeting held on 17 December 2019
	Minutes

	5 Application for the renewal of a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence: Lux, 2a-2b Pevensey Road, Eastbourne, BN21 3HJ
	Appendix 1 - Home Office Sexual Entertainment Venues Guidance for England and Wales (March 2010)
	Appendix 2 - Sex Establishment and Encounter Policy 2015
	SEX ESTABLISHMENT AND ENCOUNTER POLICY
	ADOPTED 9th December 2015
	Eastbourne Borough Council
	Sex Establishment Policy
	Contents
	1.0 Introduction
	2.0  Consultation
	3.0 Definitions
	3.1 The Act
	3.2 The Policy
	3.3 Sex Cinema
	3.4 Sex Shop
	3.5 Sex Articles
	3.6 Sexual Entertainment Venue
	3.7 The Organiser
	3.9 Relevant locality
	3.10 Permitted hours
	3.11 Appropriate Authority

	4.0  Policy Considerations
	Relevant Locality
	Strategic Vision

	5.0  General Policy
	Principles to be applied

	6.0 Renewal Applications
	7.0 The Application Process
	Making an application

	8.0 Renewal of Licences
	9.0  Variation of Licence
	10.0 Transfer of Licence
	11.0 Representations on an Application
	12.0 Duration of Licence
	13.0 Appeals
	14.0 Human Rights
	15.0 Policy Review
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	NO PERSON UNDER 18 WILL BE ADMITTED



	Appendix 3 - Renewal application for the Sexual Entertainment Venue licence
	Appendix 4 - Current licence
	Appendix 5 - Representation
	Appendix 6 - Equality and Fairness Analysis


